
Poinciana 
Community Development District 

Agenda Package 

September 18, 2019 





Poinciana 
Community Development District 

135 W. Central Blvd., Suite 320, Orlando, Florida 32801 
Phone: 407-841-5524- Fax: 407-839-1526 

September 11, 2019 

Board of Supervisors 
Poinciana Community 
Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The Board of Supervisors of Poinciana Community Development District will meet Wednesday, 
September 18, 2019 at 11:00 AM at the Starlite Ballroom, 384 Village Drive, Poinciana, FL. 
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 

1. Roll Call 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Public Comment Period on Agenda Items 
4. Approval of Minutes of the August 21, 2019 Meeting 
5. Consideration of Agreements 

A. Landscape Maintenance Agreement with Floralawn Landscape 
B. Aquatic Maintenance Agreement with Clarke Aquatic Services 
C. Midge Control Services Agreement with Clarke Environmental Mosquito 

Management 
6. Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 
B. Engineer 

i. Discussion of Stormwater Pond Operations 
C. District Manager 

i. Approval of Check Register 
ii. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

D. Field Manager 
i. Field Manager's Report 

ii. Customer Complaint Log 
7. Supervisor's Requests 
8. Other Business 
9. General Audience Comments 
10. Next Meeting Date - October 16, 2019 
11. Adjournment 

The second order of business is the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The third order of business is the Public Comment Period where the public has an opportunity 
to be heard on propositions coming before the Board as reflected on the agenda, and any other 
items. 



The fourth order of business is the approval of minutes from the August 21, 2019 meeting. The 
minutes are enclosed for your review. 

The fifth order of business is the consideration of agreements for landscape, aquatic and midge 
maintenance services. Enclosed for your reference are the current agreements in place. The 
proposal renewal agreements will be provided under separate cover. 

The sixth order of business is Staff Reports. Section B is the Engineer's Report. Sub-Section 1 is 
the discussion of the stormwater pond operations. There is no back-up material. Section C is 
the District Manager's Report. Sub-Section 1 includes the check register for approval and Sub
Section 2 includes the balance sheet and income statement for your review. Section D is the 
Field Manager's Report. The report containing the monthly treatment reports is enclosed for 
your review. Sub-Section 2 includes the customer complaint log for review. 

The balance of the agenda will be discussed at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any 
questions, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

George S. Flint 
District Manager 

CC: Jan A. Carpenter, District Counsel 
Kathleen Leo, District Engineer 
Clayton Smith, Field Manager 
Darrin Mossing, GMS 

Enclosures 



M INUTES 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
POINCIANA 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The Regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Poinciana Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, August 21, 2019 at 11:00 a.m. in the Starlight 

Ballroom, 384 Village Drive, Poinciana, Florida. 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 

Lita Epstein 
Michael Luddy 
Robert Zimbardi 
Tony Reed 
Elizabeth Lambrides 

Also, present were: 

George Flint 
Jan Carpenter 
Kathy Leo 
Clayton Smith 
Pete Deglomine 
Residents 

Chairman 
Vice Chairman 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

District Manager 
District Counsel 
District Engineer 
Field Manager 
Clarke 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the August 21, 2019 

Poinciana Community Development District's Board of Supervisors Meeting. Due to a 

malfunction with the recorder, discussion summary begins under Item 10. 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

Ms. Epstein called the meeting to order and all Board members identified themselves. A 

quorum was established. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSNESS Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period on Agenda Items 

Ms. Epstein asked for any public comments regarding items on the agenda. 



August 21, 2019 Poinciana CDD 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the June 19, 2019 
Meeting 

Ms. Epstein presented the minutes of the June 19, 2019 meeting. 

On MOTION by Mr. Reed seconded by Mr. Zimbardi with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the June 19, 2019 Meeting were approved, as 
amended. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal from Clarke 
Environmental to Provide Additional 
Aquatic Midge Control Services 

No action taken. Staff to investigate ownership for maintenance responsibilities. 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Pond Repair Agreement 
with All Terrain Tractor Service, Inc. 

Mr. Flint asked for ratification of the Pond Repair agreement with All Terrain Tractor 

Service, Inc. 

On MOTION by Mr. Zimbardi seconded by Mr. Luddy with all in 
favor, the Pond Repair Agreement with All Terrain Tractor 
Service, Inc., was ratified. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Erosion Repair Agreement 
with Lake & Wetland Management 
Orlando, Inc. 

Mr. Flint asked for ratification of the Erosion Repair agreement with Lake & Wetland 

Management Orlando, Inc. 

On MOTION by Mr. Luddy seconded by Mr. Zimbardi with all in 
favor, the Erosion Repair Agreement with Lake & Wetland 
Management Orlando, Inc., was ratified. 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2019-11 
Adopting Revised Master Assessment 
Methodology 

Mr. Flint presented Resolution 2019-11 adopting the revised Master Assessment 

Methodology. The Board had no questions or comments. 

On MOTION by Mr. Luddy seconded by Mr. Zimbardi with all in 
favor, Resolution 2019-11 Adopting Revised Master Assessment 
Methodology, was approved. 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 

2 

Consideration of Resolution 2019-14 
Authorizing the Execution and Delivery 



August 21, 2019 Poinciana CDD 

of a Release and Satisfaction Agreement 
with Avatar Properties, Inc. 

Mr. Flint presented Resolution 2019-14 authorizing the execution and delivery of a 

Release of Satisfaction Agreement with Avatar Properties, Inc. The resolution was approved 

with 24 hours for the Board to review. If no objections the agreement becomes effective. 

On MOTION by Mr. Luddy seconded by Mr. Reed with all in 
favor, Resolution 2019-14 Authorizing the Execution and Delivery 
of a Release and Satisfaction Agreement with Avatar Properties, 
Inc., was approved. 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2019-12 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget and 
Relating to the Annual Appropriations 
Ms. Epstein opened the public hearing on the budget. Mr. Flint noted there was an update 

to the current year budget, but no changes to next year's budget. He adjusted the projections for 

the next two months under stormwater repairs. The revision reflects the fact that they bid out the 

lake bank repair and it came in lower, that number came down from $110,000 to $88,243. The 

prior budget showed an ending excess revenue of $34,000 which we eliminated because they are 

only recognizing enough carryforward to balance the budget. The carryforward surplus needed to 

balance the budget is $29,363. This does not change next year's budget, it shows that less cash 

was used to balance the budget. 

Mr. Reed asked about the CDD paying a monthly bill for the tunnel. Mr. Flint noted that 

he believed the bond funds were used to construct the tunnels. Ms. Leo noted the tunnels were 

dedicated to the CDD many years ago. Mr. Reed expressed his concern that tunnels are 

extremely expensive to repair or change. He mentioned his suggestion at a prior meeting to 

consider a long-range planning budget, and putting reserve money in. Mr. Reed noted that 

specifications and building codes are minimum standards, and minimum standards do not 

provide longevity. He noted his issue with the CDD having major construction repairs on the 

ponds with such a short life span, and suggested the concrete used was not strong enough. 

Mr. Reed asked what the Town Center Commercial amounts were on the budget. Mr. 

Flint noted the commercial uses also pay assessments, when the methodology was prepared 72 

equivalent residential units were assigned to the commercial area for purposes of paying debt 

service and operating and maintenance expenses. 

3 



August 21, 2019 Poinciana CDD 

Mr. Luddy asked if bonds were used to build the tunnels originally or if it was built at 

builder's expense and then later handed over to the CDD. Ms. Leo noted she would have to 

consult the methodology, Engineer's Report, and requisitions that were funded. Mr. Flint noted 

when CDD's issue bonds there is never enough money to cover all of the eligible infrastructure. 

A portion of the infrastructure is typically going to be developer funded then conveyed. The 

Engineer's Report will identify the eligible costs, which may exceed the amount of construction 

funds that are available in the bonds. 

On MOTION by Mr. Zimbardi seconded by Mr. Luddy with all in 
favor, Resolution 2019-12 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget 
and Relating to the Annual Appropriations. 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2019-13 Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying 
an Assessment Roll 
Ms. Carpenter noted the first resolution adopts the budget and the total amount, this 

resolution imposes the assessments to pay the budget amount. It's a two-step process. 

On MOTION by Mr. Luddy seconded by Mr. Zimbardi with all in 
favor, Resolution 2019-13 Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll, was approved. 

The public hearing was closed at this time. 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 

Ms. Carpenter noted their attorney Johnathan Stimler, who the Board had met, had an 

offer to move home with his family so he has since left their firm. She noted Mr. Mike Beaudine 

would now oversee the litigation for them. All they currently have is the Motion to Tax Costs, 

which is in the process of trying to get a hearing set to hear the motion for an extension of time 

for them to produce the costs. 

i. Ratification of Motion for Substitution of Counsel 

On MOTION by Mr. Zimbardi seconded by Mr. Reed with all in 
favor, the Motion for Substitution of Counsel, was ratified. 

B. Engineer 

4 



August 21, 2019 Poinciana COD 

Ms. Leo noted they only had general maintenance items the last month. Ms. Epstein 

inquired about a plan for next year regarding repairs or updates. Ms. Leo noted they had not done 

an independent inspection again since repairs were ongoing. She wanted to wait until the repairs 

were complete, and in the dry season do another inspection. Ms. Epstein stated that was good. 

C. District Manager 

i. Approval of Check Register 

Mr. Flint presented the Check Register from July 10th through August 13th for 

$96,105.05. The Board had no questions. 

On MOTION by Mr. Zimbardi seconded by Mr. Reed with all in 
favor the Check Register totaling $96,105.05, was approved. 

ii. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

Mr. Flint presented the unaudited financial statements through July 31, 2019. The Board 

had no questions. He noted they are basically 100% collected on the on-roll and off-roll 

assessments. They are slightly under the prorated projected interest earnings. On the expense 

side, they have $496,000 in expenses against a prorated budget of $564,000. 

On MOTION by Mr. Zimbardi seconded by Mr. Luddy with all in 
favor, the Balance Sheet and Income Statements, were approved. 

iii. Approval of Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule 

Ms. Epstein presented the 2020 meeting schedule. Mr. Flint noted it follows the same 

practice of the third Wednesday of every month at 11 :00 a.m. Ms. Epstein suggested keeping the 

monthly meetings and decide per meeting if they need to cancel the next meeting or keep it. A 

few Board members mentioned having a conflict with the December meeting. 

On MOTION by Mr. Reed seconded by Mr. Zimbardi with all in 
favor, the Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule, was approved. 

D. Field Manager 

i. Field Manager's Report 

Mr. Smith noted the aerator maintenance has been very complicated due to the weather 

and that he worked with the manufacturer to adjust the voltage so fuses aren't being blown. Mr. 

Smith stated he is looking into warranty options for the compressors on the aerators as well and 

5 



August 21, 2019 Poinciana CDD 

that they are inventorying and documenting any possible priority repairs regarding the pond for 

next budget year. They are looking to repair the mitered ends and the erosion around them. He 

noted that GMS purchased a side-by-side vehicle that has greatly improved the speed at which 

they can review the ponds and take care of issues there. 

Mr. Smith noted for additional upcoming items coming up, they have the pond bank 

restoration to restore all of pond E-31 and parts of D-2. He stated his opinion that the tunnels do 

not need to be pressure washed at the moment, as they were pressure washed 4-6 months ago. He 

suggested pressure washing some time during the beginning of fiscal year 2020. Mr. Smith 

reviewed Clarke's monthly midge treatment report for July. 

ii. Customer Complaint Log 

Mr. Smith reviewed the customer complaint log. He noted they had two complaints from 

pond B-16 which is not a contracted pond. He found no great evidence of midges but they are 

following through with a courtesy barrier spray. 

The Board discussed why they paid for pond B-5 when they don't own it. Mr. Flint noted 

it was a small amount and they would need to go back and review that. There was likely 

confusion at the time about whether it was turned over or not. Mr. Flint stated they are in the 

process of removing the B-5 pond from the Floralawn and Clarke contracts. 

Mr. Reed stated he would like to see a revised maintenance records system established 

for every pond in Solivita. Mr. Flint noted they have that from the prior counsel, he and Ms. Leo 

are going through it to make sure it is up to date. It shows the date of transfer to the District, 

references the warranty deed, references whether it is in the landscape contract or lake 

maintenance contract, etc. Mr . Luddy asked if that information could be accessible through the 

CDD website so residents could see it. Mr. Flint noted the map would probably be easier to read 

and understand, however everything on the website must be ADA compliant. The more they put 

on the website, the more expensive it becomes. 

Mr. Zimbardi asked about details of removing supports from palm trees. Mr. Smith noted 

he would take a look at the trees Mr. Zimbardi pointed out to him. Mr. Zimbardi suggested 

Clayton look into a nano bubbler aerator and research them. 

Mr. Luddy asked what natural methods could be used to manage the ponds. He asked Mr. 

Smith to research that so they could begin weaning off using so many chemicals. Mr. Flint noted 

6 



August 21, 2019 Poinciana CDD 

the District has used several methods . They've done aeration and stocked the ponds with fish. 

Mr. Flint introduced the option of planting, and Ms. Leo agreed that planting would be the next 

natural option to try. 

TWEL TH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor's Requests 

Mr. Reed noted he reviewed the pond agreements and maintenance contracts, and most of 

them refer to Osceola County . He stated that a lot of their ponds are located in Polk County . He 

suggested modifying the contracts or going forward make sure the correct county is used. 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 

There being none, the next item followed. 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Other Business 

General Audience Comments 

Resident (Unidentified) asked a question regarding platted versus unplatted lots and 

assessments. The resident asked who invoices and who keeps track of who has paid versus who 

owes. Mr. Flint explained the assessment roll that lists all the platted lots within Poinciana . He 

noted they certify it for collection to the County, the County places it on the tax bill, and then as 

people pay taxes they track it. The resident asked who invoices Taylor Morrison, and Mr. Flint 

noted they send them direct bills. He pointed out in the current financials under direct 

assessments, they are fully paid for the current year. The resident asked why for next year, they 

aren't planning on any revenue under that line item. Mr. Flint stated they are anticipated that 

everything will be platted, and if it's not then they will direct bill for whatever is not. 

The resident asked if there were still any discussions about consolidating. Ms. Epstein 

explained that Charlie Case, the Chairman of the Poinciana West Board, came to the Board in 

November and said publicly in front of his Board that they did not have any interest in working 

with the Poinciana Board. The resident asked if they were interested in merging, and Ms. Epstein 

said absolutely they are. She noted until there is interest from the Poinciana West Board, they 

won't spend the money to research the cost of merging that the attorney would have to research. 

The resident stated that he and others would promote that idea. The Board thanked the resident. 

Mr. Luddy stated that he agreed with the resident and 100% encouraged merging both Boards 

into one Board. The resident stated he is extremely interested in this community and even reads 

7 



August 21, 2019 Poinciana COD 

through Poinciana West's minutes, and noted that they have outstanding minutes, so he can be 

up to date on what is going on in both places . 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Date- September 18, 2019 

The next meeting is scheduled to be held on September 18, 2019. 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

On MOTION by Mr. Luddy seconded by Mr. Zimbardi with all in 
favor the meeting was adjourned. 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary ChairmanNice Chairman 

8 



· SECTIO N V 



SECTIO N A 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN POINCIANA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AND FLORALA WN2 LLC REGARDING THE PROVISION OF 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

This Agreement (the "Agreement'') is made and entered into this 1st day of October, 
2018, by and between: 

Poinciana Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated 
in Polle County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 135 West Central 
Boulevard, Suite 320, Orlando, Florida 32801 (the "District"); and 

Floralawn2 LLC, a Florida limited liability company, whose mailing address is 
734 S. Combee Road, Lakeland, Florida 33801 (the "Contractor," and together 
with the District, the "Parties"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, 
including landscape improvements and other public infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain ari independent contractor to provide landscape 
and irrigation maintenance services within the District; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is capable of providing such services and desires 
to contract with the District to do so in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this 
~ ference are incorporated _ID:_to and form a ~te~al part of~ Agreem~t. _ ............. .- -.....-.ilMir----,...~ 

SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 

A. The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the Contractor are to provide the 
services, labor and materials ~escribed herein and in Exhibit A (the "Services"), 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, within the District, as depicted 
in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

1 



B. In the event of extreme severe weather, such as a hurricane and other extreme wind or 
water events, the Contractor shall provide the additional professional services as 
shown in Exhibit C, Emergency Preparedness Plan, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

C. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District 
and in accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall use industry best practices 
and procedures when carrying out the Services. Any additional compensation for 
additional duties shall be paid only as negotiated between the parties and upon the 
written authoriz.ation of the District. 

D. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to this 
Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations affecting 
the provision of the Services. 

E. In the event that time is lost due to heavy rains ("Rain Days"), the Contract-or agrees 
to reschedule its employees and divide their time accordingly to complete all 
scheduled services during the time during the same week as any Rain Days. The 
Contractor shall provide services on Saturdays if needed to make up Rain Days, but 
shall not provide services on Sundays. 

F. The Contractor shall report directly to the District's Designee who shall be the 
District's Field Services Manager. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the 
property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage and shall follow 
and be responsible for the Services set forth in Exhibit A on the property as provided 
in Exhibit B. Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor's 
activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours. 

SJ?,CTION 3. COMPENSATION; TERM. 

A. The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2018 through September 30, 
2019, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

-- . B,-As -~mIJensation for t1!~~c::.~~-~~~. in this ~~~~~Ja~•. 9w· qistrict nm.e~ ,~:,.:FW! 
·----· ~-jfay·tfft'contiffim Eleven ffousand Nme-Hundred'and SeventyDollars and Forty-

Two Cents ($11,970.42) per month, which amounts includes all tools, labor, materials 
and items necessary for the completion of the Services by the Contractor. 

C. Services involving the installation of pine straw/mulch and annuals are not included 
in the monthly total noted in Section 3(B) herein. Such services shall be provided at 
the written direction of the District pursuant to the rates depicted in Exhibit A. If the 
District should desire additional work or services not provided in Exhibit A, or to add 
additional lands to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to 

2 

.4-.\--



undertake such additional work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the Parties 
shall agree in writing to a work order, addendwn, add.en~ or change order to this 
Agreement. 

D. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 
Contractor that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid and 
require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be 
submitted to the District by those subcontractors. material men, suppliers or laborers, 
and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of 
said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition 
precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form 
satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to 
the District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with 
regard to the withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, 
Workmen's Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar 
payroll deductions from the wages of employees. 

E. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices. 
Further, the Contractor agrees to render monthly invoices to the District, in writing, 
which shall be delivered or mailed to the District by the fifth (5th) day of the next 
succeeding month. These monthly invoices are due and payable within forty-five 
(45) days ofreceipt by the District and in accordance with Florida's Prompt Payment 
Act. Each monthly invoice will include such supporting information as the District 
may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 

SECTION 4. CHANGE ORDERS. Contractor understands that the Services may be 
reduced, enlarged or otherwise modified in scope. If any additional Services are proposed 
beyond those identified in this Agreement, Contractor shall perform them but only after 
receiving a written change order from the District. Contractor shall cooperate with and assist the 
District in preparing and determining the scope of any change order. In the event the service is a 
unit price set forth in this Agreement, Contractor's compensation shall be adjusted for the added 
or deducted services proposed by the change order in accordance with the unit prices established 
in the Agreement. In the event this Agreement is not a unit price set forth in this Agreement, 
·contractor's compensation shall be adjusted for the added or deducted services proposed by the 
change order as reasonably determined by the District in conference with the Contractor. 

--- - '.eitiif ~-SEmoN i - --COVENANT~ Contracior hereby ooven~~ rc;-the nrstrict tbt""it;hall . . 
perform the Services: (i) using its best skill and judgment and in accordance with generally 
accepted professional and design standards and practices for projects of similar design and 
complexity as the development occurring within the District; (ii) in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state, county municipal, building and zoning, land use, environmental, public 
safety, non-discrimination and disability accessibility laws, codes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, including, without limitation, all professional registration (both corporate and 
individual) for all required basic disciplines that it shall perform; and (iii) in an expeditious and 
economical manner consistent with the best interest of the District Contractor hereby covenants 

3 



to the District that any work product of the Contractor shall not call for the use nor infringe any 
patent, trademark, services mark, copyright or other proprietary interest claimed or held by any 
person or business entity absent prior written consent from the District. 

SECTION 6 INSURANCE. Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance 
during the performance of its Services un4er this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than 
the following: 

Workers Compensation 

General Liability 
Bodily Injury (including contractual) 
Property Damage (including contractual) 

Automobile Liability (if applicable) 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage 

statutory 

$1,000,000/$2,000,000 
$1,000,000/$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

Contractor shall provide District with a certificate naming the District, its officers, agents 
and employees as an additional insured. At no time shall Contractor be without insurance in the 
above amounts. No policy may be canceled during the term of this Agreement without at least 
thirty (30) days written notice to the District. An insurance certificate evidencing compliance 
with this section shall be sent to the District prior to the commencement of any performance 
under this Agreement. 

SECTION 7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times 
the relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 
and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the District. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, 
subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor. The parties acknowledge 
that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall hire and pay 
all of Contractor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of District and 
at all times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and control. 

..-,.. - ----~ - ii . __ - !i'l!K ,i. .a_,eziiool~isMlt will-not:- i) Witlffiold F~ ~ 1a'!t'M'.t{tji!)~~tofi,- - 
payments; ii) Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor's 
behalf; iii) Withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) Make disability 
insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) Obtain workers' compensation insurance 
on behalf of Contractor. 

SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS. In 
performing its obligations under this Agreement, Contractor and each of its employees, agents, 
subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor shall comply with all 

4 



afiplieab1e laws, ordinances; rules. regulatjo11$,. and orders ,o_f a:riy. publi~ or govesrnm.ental 
a1,1thority havipg appropriate Jij.ll$d.fction; including· all laws. regulations and roles relating tp 
immigration and/9r fu¢ ~~~- Qf fqreiw wodcer;s. C9t1ir~ctor-smuI initiate, maintain, .and 
supervise au safety ptecautionSi and programs in corinecti9n 'With if$. qblig{iltiOn$' hereir,l. 
Goti~cfot s1lall. ~P-~lU'¢ that ~ o.fC.~er'$ empJQyee$, agents,. subcontractors or anyone 
directly or indirectly. employed by Otirtft~ct6t .obserye Coritractw1s.tulet and re.~fations o:fsafecy 
f;ltld •CQmliJ~t. CQntractc;>r ·sha.11 take all· reasonable precautions .for the safety· ?f~d $Jl:all provid..~ 
all reasoii~ble Protection t6 pr~vent 9aniag~; inJµry o~ foss tq . all pf its ·empl(')y.ees. agents ;artd 
stibCGntractots performing its .obljgations heteirt and other pers~nsw~o rn.~Y b¢ llf.fec.tecl, an4 any 
material. eqµu,mel}f ~d othe]'. p.rgperty ~ c'ontractQr $~ll remedy au damage or It>sl to any 
property caused in whole or iii J:>a.rl by Contr~t◊:ri it$· ~~ployees, agents,,. St;Jbcontractors: or 
~yone ciire(;tly Qr 'indirectly ·employed by Contractor~ ot by anyone for whose a~t~ qgi.ltraptor 
riiaY be H~\)le. Ggµ!_ractor $hall 1I19,~mnj;fy l)istr.i« !Qr.all d.~m~ge or fosses it may incur or-be 
exJ)esed to· b¢eause .of Contractor or any of its :employees. iigent$. sUl:>¢◊iltt<JCt9r,s 9.r ~yone 
dgecf}y or bldireetly employ~ 1>.y Contra;c;:,tor's t&i:.hi{e to comply with the provisions · contained 
hereht 

SEcnON 9. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at 
law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or 
specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit 
or impair the District's right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 10. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either party is required 
to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs 
incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees, paralegal fees and expert witness fees, and costs 
for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

SECTION 11. .AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained 
in this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
District and the Contractor. 

SECTION 12. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of . thi~ Agreement has been duly 
tj-',,!iii!_lli!Ji-.,.;:, ;~·: _!!!iT!ili'.;t!!------..,, __ ...,,iJlii.1.tfMlilii'liiiiui•&•t!u~ , by"ttie lf'llopriafelfody or o1ncial'or'me -fflsmctlfflP?Artoii'fr'acfbr, Gbih the I>1strict 

and the Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the 
Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 
instrument. 

SECTION 13. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (''Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 

5 



A. If to Contractor: 

B. If to District: 

With a copy to: 

Floralawn2 LLC 
734 South Combee Road 
Lakeland, Florida 33801 
Attn: --- - ----
Poinciana Community Development District 
135 West Central Boulevard, Suite 320 
Orlando, Florida 32801 
Attn: District Manager 

Hopping Green & Sams PA 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn: Michael C. Eckert 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. 
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver 
Notice on behalf of the District and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices 
are to be sent or copied may notify ~e other parties and addressees of any change in name or 
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to 
the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

SECTION 14. ARM'S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated 
fully between the District and the Contractor as an arm's length transaction. Both parties 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the 
case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties 
are deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will 
not be interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor. 

SECTION 15. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit 

-~:-:;~r::~ts:~@qii}: .. ;n~:~r:-~~s;~~~::u;t.~:ntlif~t~1n~~~ ·_ -_.. . -----
Agreement expressed or implied is intended ~r shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 
the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 

6 



SECTION 16. AsSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the 
other. 

SECTION 17. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. 'Ibis Agreement and the provisions 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida. Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this 
Agreement shall be in Polk County, Florida. 

SECTION 18. INDEMNIFICATION. 

A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 
agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from any 
and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, 
penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or 
otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Services to be 
performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in connection with 
this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement 
proceedings with respect thereto. Additionally, nothing in this Agreement requires 
Contractor to indemnify the District for the District's percentage of fault if the District is 
adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and Contractor 
as jointly liable parties; howe:ver, Contractor shall indemnify the District for any and all 
percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, regardless 
whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault. Contractor further 
agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's 
limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute. 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys' fees, paralegal fees 
(incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), any interest, 
expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments against the District. 

SECTION 19. LIMITATIONS ON GoVERNMENTAL LIABJLITY. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the · District beyond 

_ 81.l:Y s~tory limited w~~er ofimm~ty _?T l~ts o~~~_bilitywhic~ma , hav~,.b~!! -.; o.i;:ect~):7 
_,. . ..,,~eiflltri& QMI'!iure-iif·'Sfflffln. 768.28", Flonda--Staturl'r.·or Mner siF&, and nolli.ing m this 

Agreement shall inure to the benefit· of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim 
which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of 
law. 

SECTION 20. TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement for cause by providing thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the District; 
provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any 
failure under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this 

7 



Agreement immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. 
The District shall provide thirty (30) days 'Written notice of tennination without cause. Upon any 
termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services 
rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off 
sets the District may have against the Contractor as the sole means of recovery for termination. 

SECTION 21. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, 
specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation, 
inventions, reports, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pursuant 
to this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when 
developed and shall be considered work for hire. 

SECTION 22. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS. Contractor understands and 
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement 
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 
119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records 
custodian for the District is George Flint ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other 
requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain 
public records required by the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public 
Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or 
confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as 
authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract term if the 
Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) 
upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District. at no cost, all public records in 
Contractor's possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements 
for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred 
by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format_ that is compatible with Microsoft 
Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

----,;--: I:~_ ~-- __ -.... r1:Mt~rTJ£AUSJ"N_ Q:tJ:HAP.J:ERJ.12, ll1PP«M--s:t,,tm~ 1'l 
-· ~ THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 

RECORDS RELATING TO TIDS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS, GMS-CENTRAL 
FLORIDA, LLC, AT (407) 841-5524, GFLINT@GMSCFL.COM, 
OR 135 WEST ~ENTRAL BOULEVARD, SUITE 320, 
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32801. 

8 



SECTION 23. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 

SECTION 24. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and 
complete expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement to be effective the day and 
year first written above. 

Attest: 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary 

Witness: 

-{)\.,..ul)Q\ ~--.J 
(Signature of Witne 

(Y\-e,t I °;>'SA- ;r C)V\vif>DQ 
(Print Name of Witness) 

Exhibit A: Sco!e of Services 
--- - F ~dfBrtD: - l:in scapehlap .. 

Exhibit C: Emergency Preparedness Plan 

POINCIANA COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

?up 
Chairman, B ofSupervisors 

9 



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS 

1. MOWING 

Uniformity in turf texture and appearance shall be provided. Mowing shall be performed 
with specified mower types & blades to provide a quality cut as listed in Appendix I. The 
pond banks shall be mowed in one direction, if possible, to reduce the amount of grass 
clippings being displaced and/or blown into the ponds; provided, that mowing patterns shall 
be rotated (where applicable) to minimize scalping and rutting by mower wheels and to 
minimize soil compaction. Grass cutting height shall be between 3.5 - 4.5 inches for St 
Augustine and 3 ½ to4 inches for Bahia. 

Contractor must use alternate methods of mowing areas where the ground is too wet to allow 
safe and proper mowing. Contractor will notify Property Manager within 24 hours and 
contractor shall use string trimming or fly mower instead of regular lawn mowers for service. 

Contractor shall not mow over or through tree rings intended to be mulched. 

• ST. AUGUSTINE TURF AND IRRIGATED BAIIlA TURF 

Mowing of all turf areas no less than once every seven (7) days during the months of April 1st 

to October 3P 1• 

Mowing of all turf areas no less than once every fourteen (14) days from November 1st to 
March 315t. 

• NON-IRRIGATED BAHIA TURF 

,,.., - .. - .,;;:: Ill!! ,-.... .. - ,..,___ - ·- ,·,<s,-:ai!ii§iiiis::~ ii!iiiiili,e-- '!!ilil[ll!ii!!lil!!i-~---.1 ---
November thru April 1 mow per month (}St week of the month) 
May & June 2 mows per month (1st and 3rd week of the month) 
July thru September 4/5 mows per month (every week) 
October 2 mows per month (1st and 3rd week of the month) 

1 



2. EDGING 

Defined as the outlining and/ or removing of turf by use of a mechanical edger. Chemical or 
string edging will be allowed with prior approval of the District in special instances. 

Contractor shall neatly edge and trim around all plant beds, curbs, walks, streets, trees, tree 
rings, plants and building areas by use of mechanical edgers. The shape and configurations 
of plant beds shall be maintained as instructed by District 

The edging of all sidewalks, curbs, pathways, and other paved areas will be completed no 
less than once every seven (7) days during the months of April to October and no less than 
once every fourteen (14) days from November l81 to March 3151

• Edging will be done within 
24 hours of the scheduled mowing service. 

The edging of all planting beds and tree rings will be completed every other mowing to avoid 
over detailing of bed areas. Care shall be taken as not to injure tree trunks or plant materials 
during the edging operations. . 

3. DETAILING OF PLANTED AREAS 

This service is defined as the trimming, weeding by mechanical or chemical means, pruning, 
and shaping of all shrubbery, ornamentals, and groundcover, removal of tree suckers as well 
as the defining of bed lines, tree saucers, tree rings, and the removal of unwanted vegetation. 
Weeding would include the weeding of all beds (including cut turf runners), walkways, 
decks, curbs and concrete joints. Chemical controls may only be used if adjacent desirable 
plants are guaranteed not to be injured. Contractor shall maintain a valid Florida Pesticide 
Applicator's License and use chemicals in strict accordance with Federal, State & County 
directives on environmental control. Chemicals must have EPA approval #'s and labels 
made available to the District per request. American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 
regulations are to be observed. 

• Pruning services will be performed at minimum one (1) time per month year round. 

• Weeding services will be performed at minimum bi-weekly year rormd. 
· - ·. •, !ffa ... l .. 0 .. · -- · -'- · .__. cil!~iiL . : - :· .rrz·· - .. --- - .· .: ,_.,.,.,;,;.,- .. ·. - -•·· - ~- ..-,.. - -.... i!ililii!ililii!i.-P.![ -~ .;;;:il!!J._ •• 

o At no time are weeds in excess of one square foot of ground cover in one 
location or 8" in height acceptable. 

4. TREES 

Trees in pedestrian walkway areas will have a clearance maintained up to eight (8' -10') feet 
in height. Trees along roadways, entrances, and driveways will have a clearance maintained 
up to ten (10- 12') feet in height 

2 



Palm trees up to (12') feet of clear trunk will be trimmed based on University of Florida's 
recommendations of 100% browning. All Palms on property will be trimmed at 3 to 9 
o'clock. Palm trees up to 12 foot (ct) will be pnmed during the routine detail rotation. 
Fronds removed before such time will be at the request of the District, with the District 
talcing ownership for the health and any long term horticultural decline that may occur. 
Careful trimming procedures shall be followed to prevent damage to any portion of the tree, 
especially the crown, shaft & bud areas. 

Palm trees over (12') feet clear trunk (ct) will be pruned at least once per year at 3 to 9 
o'clock. This includes all common areas. 

Sucker growth shall be removed monthly according to ''trimming" specifications. Sucker 
growth is defined as the shoots that sprout out around the base and clear trunk area of a tree 
or crape myrtle trunk. 

Crape Myrtles (if applicable) will be pruned one (1) time per year in late winter UNLESS 
otherwise specified by the District. It is possible that some Crape Myrtles will be allowed to 
grow into trees. University of Florida's recommendations shall be followed in Crape Myrtle 
pruning: 

• Remove suckers from the bottom of the plant. 

• Remove crossed, damaged, or diseased branches. For crossed branches, remove the 
weaker of the two limbs that are crossing or rubbing. 

• Prune the tips of the branches to remove old flowers. If old blooms are removed, a 
second blooming may occur. 

• Remove old flower buds at the beginning of the season, which will encourage new 
growth activity. 

• Thin out small twiggy growth to allow air to better circulate in the canopy . 

S. BLOWING 

,.: .. · . .• sk:!la,- •• ---- •--· -.:iilili. _:a:=:~ --- .c. lii,°~-·- :.;;,:-~ .. :c -_,, · ---,...- __,__ i~liilS<:. -- J 
Sidewalks, curbs and other paved surfaces adjacent to turf and/ or other landscaped elements 
will be kept clean of unwanted debris generated by the Contractor by the use of forced air 
machinery. The Contractor shall ensure that there are no leafs or grass clipping blowing into 
the ponds. 

6. MONITORING 

All turf, shrubs, ornamentals and groundcovers are to be monitored for pest, disease and 
nutrient problems with positive findings being reported, in writing. If the problem is a 

3 



covered item under the provisions of this contract, immediate steps will be taken to rectify 
the problem. If a treatment is not in effect or not available, contractor will provide an 
estimate based on time and materials needed for effective trea1ment. 

7. TRASH REMOVAL 

Contractor will police the entire site prior to mowing to remove litter. Contractor will 
remove all debris and/or litter from all areas maintained under this contract during every 
visit. 

8. DEBRIS REMOVAL 

Contractor is responsible for the removal of any maintenance-related debris from the 
property no later than the end of the day where the debris was generated. 

9. DEAD WOOD/ MATTER 

Dead or otherwise ha7.ardous (broken) tree branches shall be removed promptly if they are 
within fifteen (15') feet of a hard surface. Dead or otherwise hazardous tree branches that 
are above the contract specifications should be brought to the attention of the District for pre
approval and subsequent immediate removal. 

All extraneous leaves, weeds, trash, limbs and debris shall be removed from lawn and plant 
beds. 

10. CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE AND APPEARANCE 

The landscape maintenance contractor shall perform all work required to fulfill the spirit and 
intent of the Contract. The workers shall be neat in appearance, perform their work in a 
professional manner, keep noise to a minimum and stage their work from a location on the 
site out of the main stream of the users. In general, the landscape maintenance contractor's 
presence on the site shall be as inconspicuous as possible. 

11. NEGLECT AND VANDALISM 

-----~•ff a , - -T-w.-f, shrul,s;•-kee8'fi!61qnslits tit V tl~lled --due to laffllscape"61tiaiw!l!!ffiID.CC T __ !lfP! __ .,.,,,,Klll!!I!! 

contractor's operations, negligence or chemicals, shall be replaced immediately at no cost to 
the District. If plant damage or death is caused by conditions beyond the landscape 
maintenance contractor's control, replacement shall be at the District's expense. 

Sprinklers or structures that are damaged due to the landscape maintenance contractor's 
operations must be replaced by the landscape maintenance contractor immediately at his 
expense. Damage caused by others shall be promptly brought to the District's attention. 

4 



All water damage resulting from Contractor's negligence shall be corrected at Contractor's 
expense. 

All damage to or thefts of landscaping and irrigation installation not caused or allowed by 
Contractor shall be corrected by the Contractor at the District's expense upon authorization 
to proceed. 

16. QUALITY 

All landscaping materials installed must meet or exceed all state and/or local codes and/or 
ordinances of the State of Florida (Florida #1 or Florida Fancy Plants and Trees) All plants 
shall be healthy, well branched and densely foliated, with well-developed root systems, free 
of disease and insect pests. The District reserves the right to reject any plant material(s) that 
if feels does not meet expectation. 

FERTILIZATION AND PEST CONTROL SPECIFICATIONS 

GENERALRE QUIREMENTS 

1. Pond banks shall be fertilized semi-annually. This should only be done by owner's request. 
2. Technicians will give appropriate notification to persons in the immediate area of impending 

chemical applications. 
3. Application reports giving the date, type of chemical applied, application rates, name of 

technician and company shall be given to the District's management company. 
4. Copies of manufacturer labels and Material Safety Data Sheets shall be provided to the 

District's management company. 
5. All materials will be used as approved for intended use by the regulatory standards. 
6. All materials shall be applied per the manufacturer's specifications and guidelines . 
7. Lawn and pesticide signs shall be posted at the home or common area after the use of 

chemicals for safety and compliance. 
8. The District Manager and representatives of the District reserve right to be present when 

chemicals are being mixed and applied. 
9. Specifications are performance based and ultimately insect/disease & weed control to the 

complete satisfaction of the District is the responsibility of the contractor. 

I 

Contractor shall provide fertilization & insect, disease & broadleaf (primarily but not 
exclusively) weed control to all areas of St Augustine turf. The following is a recommended 
guideline the Contractor should follow: 

All fertiliz.ers utilized must contain a nutrient package specifically blended for Florida's unique 
landscapes and will have a minimum of 50% slow release nitrogen source to ensure extended 
performance. A compl~te minor element package shall be included with each application to 

5 



insure that all of the requirements for a Florida landscape are provided for. The method of 
application will be dependent upon the landscape layout. 

• The lawn treatments should consist of a minimum of four blanket applications and 
minimum three 1PM visits by a qualified technician or as specified in the contract. 
Premium product will be used to prevent surge growth, but still allow for an attractive, 
healthy, vigorous lawn. 

1PM Defined- Contractor must utilize and employ an Integrated Pest Management Program or 
IPM program. This program is designed based off of key points of interest suggested by the 
University of Florida. The key elements are as follows: 

1. Prevention- Proper planting, maintenance, and sanitation practices. 
2. Cultural-Employment of good horticultural practice to optimize plant health. 
3. Scouting- Trained personnel diligently scout property for signs of disease or 

infestation. 
4. Identification-The appropriate means are taken to diagnose the cause. 
5. Program Implementation- Contractor perso~el must use the least noxious 

means of pesticide/bio-rational application to remedy situation. Ultimately, 
Contractor recommends the best course of action to follow. 

6. Follow up- Trained personnel follow up on progress of treatment plan and report 
back to the District 

Contractor must employ methodology consistent with . "Florida Green Industries Best 
Management Practices." 

In Polk County with an adopted fertilizer ordinance, the Polk ordinance shall prevail and serve as 
a guide to nutrient selection and timing. Please check the following Polk County ordinance at 
http://polk.ifas.ufl.edu/AG Safety/:files/pdf/publications/laws/PolkCoFertilizerM gmtOrdinance. p 
df 

Turf Weed Control: The control of broad.leaf weeds will be included in the Contractors 
program. Herbicides should be applied only when temperatures are below 90 degrees and wind 

-- -~ at-a rriRbr;n-t~~e. -• --- ~ ., .. ,;:,. ... IL, . MI --_ .,~. 

• Due to the unavailability or restricted use of effective control products, the prevention or 
control of Crabgrass, Bermuda grass, and select Sedges are not part of this proposal. It is 
understood that at the expense of the District, any areas of select Crabgrass, Bermuda & 
select Sedge can be replaced by the Contractor. 

• Weed control is to be maintained at no less than 90%. 

6 

-



~ --. :fJ~rs.tt:;::: .... ::. Iii ··p.·-- · 

Turf Insect Control: The appropriate pesticides will be used for lawn damaging insects. Turf 
will be inspected on a regular basis by a qualified technician or other qualified personnel for any 
follow up necessary. 

• Ant control and other pesticide and/or fungicide applications above and beyond the 

standard program will be included in this contract. 

• Preventative grub control is expected and curative spot control is also expected. 

TURF CARE SPECIFICATIONS: Bahia Turf 

Bahia grass has the ability to withstand extended periods of time without rainfall or irrigation . 
Most weeds do not possess this ability and thus drought tolerance is the turfs primary means of 
survival. Irrigation (where applicable) will be eliminated in all Bahia turf areas. If requested by 
the District, the contractor will provide a price for Bahia fertilization. 

WARRANTY 

If the turf included in this "turf care program" dies due to damage from biotic agents such as 
insects or diseases or from abiotic factors such as fuel spills or fertilizer burn, the turf will be 
replaced at no expense to the District. 

SMALL TREE/SHRUB CARE .(<lO' ) PROGRAM: 

Fertilization: Tree and shrub fertilization frequencies will be performance based, not treatment 
based. It is expected that the Contractor use a complete fertilizer blend with all necessary minor 
elements. The blend should be 50% slow release or an equivalent. 

• Transplanted trees less than 3 years old will be included in standard program; trees over 
that age will be fertilized with the lawn application. 

• In Polle County with an adopted fertilizer ordinance, the Polle County ordinance shall 
prevail and serve as a guide to nutrient selection and timing. 

-- ·- -

Integrated Pest Management: Pesticides will only be used on .an as-needed basis and only in 
the general areas having the problem. A curative approach shall be implemented for insect and 
disease management in turf and landscape areas when damaging thresholds have been identified 
as negatively impacting either, health or aesthetics. In areas where problems persist, then a 
preventative approach should be implemented. 

7 



• Contractor personnel should be diligent in their scouting of damaging pests and disease. 

Horticultural pest control and or appropriate recommendations will be made to minimize 
injury to ornamental plants. This is to be achieved by monitoring the property and a 
complete service and inspection at minimum every eight (8) weeks. 

ORNAMENTAL PALM TREE PROGRAM: 

Fertilization: Tree fertilization frequencies shall be performance based, not treatment based. It 
is expected that the Contractor use a complete fertilizer blend with all necessary minor elements. 
The blend should be 100% slow release. Contractor will use premium products at the 
recommended rate to prevent any surge growth. but still allow for an attractive, healthy, vigorous 
landscape. 

• Therapeutic applications of minor elements are to be included to ornamental palms 
indicating need. 

• In Polk County with an adopted fertilizer ordinance, the County ordinance shall prevail 
and serve as a guide to nutrient selection and timing. 

Palm Integrated Pest Management: Pesticides will only be used on an as-needed basis and 
only in the general areas having the problem. A curative approach shall be implemented for 
insect and disease management in turf and landscape areas when damaging thresholds have been 
identified as negatively impacting either, health or aesthetics. In areas where problems persist, 
then a preventative approach should be implemented. 

• Contractor personnel should be diligent in their scouting of damaging pests and disease. 
Horticultural pest control and or appropriate recommendations will be made to minimize 
injury to ornamental plants. This is to be achieved by monitoring of the property and a 
complete service and inspection at minimum every eight (8) weeks. 

• Bud and root drenching for specific insect/disease problems are not to be included but 
i..11 _ .... :.wii![i;fi.,,,, __ •J••-•----!!it--""'"""'"' ""l'C~ticed s-eparately if'needed~ndffiilip mrll""""''"" -- --~ -: -· --==-Sil!lli!! 

WARRANTY 

If a plant, shrub or tree dies from insect or disease damage while under this tree/ shrub/palm 
care program, it will be replaced, at no cost to the District, with one of equal value and that is 
reasonably available and approved by the District. 

8 



IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE SPECIFICATIONS 

This service is defined as inspection & repair of the irrigation system by the contractor for the 
community common areas. Any damage caused by contractor activity shall be repaired by the 
contractor at the contractor's expense. 

Minor repairs will be made at the time of inspection or during work . order process on a monthly 
basis. Minor repairs include; spray heads, rotor heads, nozzles, stand pipes, shrub adaptors, 
valves and lateral lines up to 1.5 inch. Minor repairs are the responsibility of the contractor and 
are included in the monthly proposed price. 

, 

Major irrigation repairs are not included in the proposed price and will be completed on a 
separate work order upon approval by the District Manager. Major repairs include but are not 
limited to, main line larger than 1.5 inch, controllers, pumps, backflows and rain sensors. 

The contractor shall be responsible for any damage to the turf or plants due to either under 
watering or over watering by the irrigation system. Contractor will not be held responsible for 
failure of main irrigation water supply, water pressure or water restrictions imposed by a 
statutory or similar authority. 

FREQUENCY 

Contractor shall perform a complete irrigation maintenance inspection once per month. 

IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

The District irrigation contractor is responsible for the management and maintenance of the 
irrigation system located on District-owned lands. 

The system uses reclaimed water provided by TOHO Water Authority with the exception of the 
community pool areas located throughout. Contractor is required to maintain communication 
with TOHO on behalf of the District and Developer. 

Contractor is responsible for generating data from daily monitoring. interpret data and generate 
reports for field dispatch, field repair and adjustments as necessary and maintain documentation. 
Daily data will be provided by the contractor and made available to the District Manager upon 

-- . r ... -.. ~ . ·----- - -~~--.. · .• . IF,:: . c· ..... ..,., .. · .. ■ < ... - · ·--·- -------.• .-Pllliiiz... .. 2-,.- . 

Contractor is responsible for adjustments to watering schedules as needed for weather, new sod, 
plants, trees or other improvements at the common areas as requested through the District work 
order system. 

Contractor must respond to all District generated work orders within 48 hours for common areas. 
Contractor is required to activate system for residents, meet with residents on site when 
necessary and to close work orders through the District Manager. 

9 



Contractor will be responsible to activate and inspect all zones for the entire community monthly 
and make necessary adjustments for proper operation. Each inspection must be documented in 
writing and provided to the District Manager upon request. 

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS 

1. Timing of irrigation operation must adhere to any water restrictions in effect 

within the property jurisdiction. 

2. The following items shall be accomplished each month for common areas: 

• Activate each zone of the system. 

• Visually check and replace as necessary of any damaged or malfunctioning 
heads in District-owned lands. This should be done weekly by area supervisor 

or irrigation tech. 

• Clean and/or adjust any heads not functioning properly. The District will be 

allowed to inspect any heads that he may be charged for. 

• Report any valve or valve box that may be malfunctioning or damaged in any 
way. 

• Adjust controllers to the watering needs as dictated by environmental 
conditions. 

• Inspect and adjust rain sensors as needed. 

• Insure that all valves that are marked remain sufficiently marked to allow a 
person unfamiliar with the system to locate. 

• Provide a monthly written report detailing inspection results by clock and 

zone. 

3. Irrigation repairs that become necessary, that are over and above minor repairs as 
outlined will be done on a time and material basis. All extra repairs are to be 
estimated & reported to the District and the contractor must obtain approval prior 
to starting repair work. 

10 



The written proposal shall include: 

• Hourly rate for irrigation tech 

• Necessary materials 

Contractor must provide and possess experience in operation of central control irrigation 
systems, 

STORM PREPARATION 

In the event of a forecasted weather event, such as but not limited to hurricanes, the District may 
deem it necessary to suspend all operation of irrigation equipment, pump stations, and to secure 
controllers to avoid power surges and any catastrophic events such as an uprooted tree that 
breaks a mainline. These services, should they be requested, would be considered over and above 
the routine maintenance contract and will be done on a time and material basis. 

SPECIAL SERVICES SPECIFICATIONS 

MULCH 

It is anticipated that the District will mulch the entire property once per year. This will 
include all common areas. 

Old mulch in excess of three inches (3 ") in depth will be removed prior to installation of a 
new layer of mulch. This step will be at the discretion of the District. If the District deems 
this step necessary, the Contractor will provide a price to remove the excess mulch prior to 
installation of new mulch. The pricing for mulch installation are as follows: 

Item Cost ner Bale 
100 Bales $8.00 
5Q0Bales $7.50 
1,000 Bales $7.25 
5,000 Bales $7.00 

As part of this agreement it is expected that the contractor will provide ongoing extensive 
communication to the District Manager and Residents of the community. Communications 
include but are not limited to: 

• Daily work orders 

• Daily updates as needed for "Solivita Live" 

11 



• Weekly email blast 

• Monthly mow schedule 

• Monthly detail schedule 

• Monthly newsletter article 

• Special project schedules (i.e. mulching, palm & tree pruning) 

12 



Appendix I 

Types of Machinery Used at Solivita 

Pond Banlcs: 

o Batwing finish mower with rear discharge 
o 60 inch pistol grip mower with mulch kit 

FlatAreas: 

o 70 inch mowing deck mower 

--- ··-••a!iii~--~:.,.a1if1•!11 __ IP.-· _.,;;_,..,-_,_M!l!ii.11!1!1~--:., .,..:s: 

1 



ExhibitB 

The following pond banks and adjacent areas owned by the District, as identified 
on the attached map dated June 2018, are included within the scope of this 
agreement: 

A-1, A2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-6, A-7, A-8, A-9, A-l0A, A-l0B, A-11, A-12, A-13, 
A-20, A-21, A-22; and 

B-1, B-3, B-5, B-6, B-11, B-15, B-16; and 

C-1 C-2 C-3 C-6A C-6B C-8 C-9 C-10 C-11 C-12 C-13 C-14 C-15 C-16 '', ' ',' , , , ' , , ' 
C-17, C-18, C-19, C-20; and 

D-1 D-2 D-3 D-4 D-5 D-6 D-7 D-8 D-9 D-10 D-11 · and ''' ',' ',' ' ' 
E-1, E-2, E-3, E-5, E-6, E-8, E-11, E-18, E-19, E-21, E-31; and 

F-7. 



Landscape Maintenance Map 

---------------

SO L'ii'J TA 
POINCIANA CDD 

WETI.AND & POND 
OWNERSHIP MAP -- II --~ 



Exhibit C 

Emergency Preparedness Plan 

Poinciana Community Development District 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLAN 
For 

LANDSCAPE, HARDSCAPE & STREETSCAPE AMENITIES 

Located In 
POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Purpose: To provide a comprehensive list of procedures to be followed by the Contractor for preparations related to 
stonn events and other natural emergencies on the District jobsite within the District's boundaries. This plan is to be 
utilized as the minimal procedures to be followed during preparation for stonn events, such as hurricane and other 
extreme wind or water events. Actual physical situations and weather conditions may affect the execution of this 
plan. This plan is to be utilized as a guide for the process. 

The District will appoint a representative referred to as the Stonn Emergency Preparedness Coordinator (SEPC) 
who will closely monitor the weather conditions during the hurricane season, which runs from June l •t to November 
30th every year, and generally monitor the weather for the balance of the year . The SEPC will coordinate with the 
Contractor to ensure that the minimum requirements of this plan are met. The initial SEPC is - ~ ----""'--~- _;, 

The Contractor may have company-generated emergency/storm work procedures in place, which exceed this plan. 
These procedures must be coordinated and approved by the SEPC. At a minimum, the Contractor will be required 
to follow the procedures outlined in this plan. For the safety of all employees, the Contractor's crew shall not be 
dispatched until the stonn has passed, unless authorized by the SEPC. After the storm has passed, the jobsite will be 
evaluated by the Contractor's Project Superintendent (CPS) and the SEPC for safe working conditions. All 
employees are not to be allowed to return to work until the site has been deemed safe and sanitary for work by the 
SEPC and the CPS. No personnel, whether essential or non-essential, shall be allowed to work on the site when 
maximum sustained winds exceed thirty-nine miles per hour (39 mph). It is contemplated that a regional emergency 
counciVgroup ("Council") may be established among landowners with the District in the future for the purpose of 
effectuating Development-wide emergency policies and procedures. In the event the Council designates facilities 
for the purpose of allowing essential personnel to remain on-site during an emergency, the Contractor agrees to 
coordinate with the SEPC in determining whether Contractor personnel shall remain onsite during an emergency at 
such time in the future. 

-- .- X4frlt•caaam, is expec~ii469iiiice tneDistrict in ~iifity'iffif)uow&iititl ElfAJJCtSr-Mt''c6Mfilt to'"baviiig
labor and equipment on site within twelve (12) hours of the storm passing to begin cleanup and restoration 
operations. 

The Contractor will bring in additional equipment and labor, if needed, with the approval of the SEPC. The 
Contractor shall submit a Labor and Equipment Rate Schedule annually for review and approval by the SEPC. The 
Contractor shall submit to the SEPC a rate schedule on or before October 1. All preparedness action items shall be 
in addition to the scope of services identified in the Agreement and shall be provided by the Contractor at no 
additional cost. 

It is expected that, as a matter of protocol, the Contractor will also monitor the weather for tropical storms, 

-----



hurricanes, and other weather events that may create emergency conditions throughout the year. The key to 
providing the safest environment and prot.ection of the landscape and hardscape assets located within the District is 
based upon preparations, stonn awareness, communication, and response. 

PREPARATIONS: Preparations for expected storm events may differ; these are the minimum actions that should 
be undertaken. 

During the stonn season, the best practice for the jobsite location is to maintain a supply of emergency supplies in 
the event of isolation, loss of utility services, road blockage, and loss of fuel supplies. Suggested items to be 
included in the Emergency Response Box ("Hurricane Box"), or other such emergency storage container, should 
include, but is not limited to: 

• Supply of Drinking water (3 days per employee on site) 
• 3 day supply of non-perishable food 
• Flashlights and fresh batteries (lights plus backup batteries) 
• Nylon rope (polypropylene) (500') 
• Spare Ear Plugs 
• Tarps (5-10) 
• Leather palmed gloves 
• Fuel Electrical Generator Hand tools (ax, shovel, rake, etc.) 
• First Aid Kit 
• Ducttape 
• Plastic garbage bags -large yard size 
• Rain Suit 
• 1 roll of CAUTION tape 
• Spare Safety Goggles 
• Rubber boots 
• Mosquito Repellant 
• Asphalt "cold patch" 
• Quick set concrete mix 
• Spare irrigation pipe and fittings 
• Chainsaw(s) 
• Leafblower(s) 
• Extension cord (500') 
• String of temporary lights 
• Rolls of Poly (S) 
• Scaffold and boards 
• Portable light on wheels 
• Spare chainsaw chains 
• Chainsaw bar oil 

Where potential for a hurricane landfall, or other natural emergency, is expected within a five {S) day period, or in 
the event the area is placed W1der a "HURRICANE WATCH," the following shall occur: 

1. The CPS shall establish comm\Dlication with the SEPC regarding the presence of the 
storm/hurricane/emergency and review site specific actions to be widertaken by the Contractor. 

2. The CPS shall monitor the stonns progress at regular intervals via radio, television, computer/internet, or 
other means available. 



3. The CPS shall communicate conditions and plans with their company's Safety Team or Safety Manager as 
may be required to review the situation ahead of time. 

4. The CPS shall continue to monitor the storm/hurricane/emergency for changes in the storm profile and/or 
projected course, and communicate these changes to the SEPC. 

3 Day Action Plan: 

Where potential for a storm/hurricane landfall, or other natural emergency, is expected within a five (5) day period 
or in the event the area is placed under a ''HURRICANE WARNING," preparations shall be made to: secure the 
jobsite; protect District landscape and hardscape assets; prepare for tie down actions and evacuation. In addition, the 
following shall occur: 

I . The CPS shall establish communication with the SEPC regarding the potential emergency conditions and 
review site specific protocols required by the SEPC and by the Contractor. 

2. The CPS shall notify the Company Safety Manager and/or supervisory personnel of the preparations of the 
jobsite shutdown and preparation to secure the site. 

3. The SEPC will hold meetings with Contractor supervisory personnel and employees to discuss the 
proposed action plan. 

4. Ensure all materials, tools, tool sheds, containers and small equipment are removed from low-lying areas 
and are protected from rising water and are tied down. 

5. Ensure that all motorized equipment is securely parked in an elevated area so it will not be damaged from 
possible flooding and is tied down. Equipment parking areas will be approved by the SEPC after <liscussion 
with the CPS. 

6. All Contractor-owned construction trailers, office trailers, tool trailers, sheds, etc., if any, on the 
Contractor's jobsite shall be tied down securely according to City of Orlando Code. If equipment cannot 
be secured properly, it shall be removed from the jobsite. 

7. Police the jobsite and storage yards to remove, or direct removal of, potential flying objects from the site or 
secure them with proper tie-downs. 

8. Have all temporary port-o-lets pWllped out, tied down or removed. 

9. Have all trash dumpsters emptied or removed 

10. Top off all equipment with fuel in the event that fuel supply becomes short or service stations are 
-- - i~ 1,;£ lb · fr~~~/e11 gr ~y. All-equipment411d all fusi;;ea.1 d ul,J l IP 1 E&fl'&eiiv...-- ~-

11. All water containers should be filled with potable water to capacity. 

12. All bag fertilizer or chemicals should be placed in the interior of a secure structure or removed from the 
site. 

13. Board up all windows in field office (if applicable), or protect them with stonn shutters. 

14. Disconnect all field office (if applicable) electrical equipment (computers, copiers, etc.). 



15. Take photos of your site prior to the storm/emergency to record site and landscape conditions. 

16. Park trucks and other motorized equipment in an open area that will be easy to clear and near a major 
roadway, if possible, so after-stonn access is easier. 

17. All uninstalled landscape materials shall be secured in the best possible way considering the anticipated 
intensity of the upcoming storm event 

18. All ties, guys and other tree or plant material support systems shall be checked, tightened, secured or 
replaced to protect the landscape asset from the level of stonn damage expected. 

19. All drains, swales, inlets, outlets or other elements of the drainage system shall be checked to ensure that 
the stonnwater structures and conveyance channels are free flowing. 

1 Day Plan: (Hurricane is Eminent) 

The CPS shall establish communication with the SEPC regarding the eminence of a stonn/hurricane/emergency and 
review site specific protocols to be utilized by the SEPC and by the CPS. C01mmmication options for post storm 
shall be established in the event of the loss of cellular or wired communication for the time period immediately 
following the stonn event. 

The CPS shall notify the Contractor's Safety Manager and/or supervisory personnel of the preparations at thejobsite 
and potential for a project site lockdown . Discussion will entail whether and at what time a lockdown shall be 
mandated or if there is adequate safe and secure shelter from the stonn. In the event of an evacuation, the 
Contractor's employees shall be offered evacuation and encouraged to participate in an evacuation plan. Before any 
evacuation, the following shall be completed: 

I. Remove any scaffolding. 

2. Ensure that all small equipment is in the security of storage containers or secure building. 

3. All small materials are placed in close proximity to storage containers. 

4. All heavy equipment is parked surrounding the yard materials and storage containers to form a perimeter. 
Final inspection ofthejobsite to secure any small items and to prevent flying debris shall be conducted by 
the SEPC at this point. 

5. Ensure first aid kits are fully stocked. 

6. Identify debris collection locations. 

7. Place flashlight , fresh batteries, first aid kit and/or emergency kit in appropriate company vehicles . In the 
0--- ---• ~ ei'l!_III_ -■- !ili!--ffl-~vaccralitfil ;~tmtractor' ' s trucks re1T!Trnfug"ffllil'"fffi~ffln!M•""'-~rt in' a pe~f with -

the heavy equipment. 

8. Generators shall be placed in a point of easy access for first retrieval. 

9. Take photos and/or video of the securedjobsite, if possible. 

10. Sandbag the doors of the field office (if applicable), if possible. 

After the storm: (Post Hurricane) 

-· 



I. Once the stonn has passed, the jobsite shall be evaluated in partnership with the CPS and the SEPC for its 
safety. The CPS shall organize available manpower to accomplish specific tasks based upon a 
prioritization of such tasks provided by the SEPC. All site specific hWlrds will be noted and corrected 
within the skills, abilities and training of Contractor's employees. Dangerous conditions for human 
occupancy may include, but are not limited to, unstable hard structures, presence of open or downed 
electrical lines, excessive water build-up/flooding, unsanitary conditions such as the presence of waste, 
threat of electrical hazards, presence of displaced wildlife, and so forth. The CPS shall communicate this 
with the SEPC to discuss plans for correction or elimination of unsafe conditions. 

2. The SEPC in conjunction with the CPS and the Contractor's supervisory personnel shall evaluate the 
earliest time for resuming work on the jobsite and shall implement plans to that effect. Assistance with 
clean-up of non-contracted projects or work areas, using Contractor's heavy equipment, vehicles, and labor, 
wiII be negotiated based on the Pre-Approved Labor & Equipment Rate Schedules. It is the intent of the 
District to continue to provide the safest workplace and the highest level of efficiency in starting work 
following a stonn. 

3. The priorities will be: 

I. Ensure that the public is safe and protected from unsafe conditions on the jobsite created by the 
stonn; 

2. Secure personal property; 
3. Proceed to the jobsite with caution; 
4. Ensure that site working conditions are safe; 
5. Clear roadways and other access routes of hazards; 
6. Identify and mark areas where dangerous conditions exist; 
7. Secure damaged buildings; 
8. Repair or make operable any equipment which can be used in the cleanup effort. 
9. Photo-document the site prior to starting cleanup operations. 

4. Due to the perishable nature oflandscape material, every effort should be made to return the plant material 
to their original location and position. Contractor shall attempt to return uprooted trees or plants within 
forty-eight ( 48) hours. 

5. Areas where hardscape, signs or other site amenities have been damaged should be cleared and made 
passable as quickly as possible. 

6. Photo-document the worksite upon retmn, noting any significant changes, and communicate those changes 
with the SEPC. 

7. Photo-docmnent any and all damage to the landscape and hardscape areas. 

8. Assess all repairs and losses within seven (7) days after the storm has passed, with follow-up assessments 
to occur sixty (60) days and six (6) months thereafter. 



SECTIO N 8 



- ----~ ---•· ..... _ .• ... 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN POINCIANA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AND CLARKE AQUATIC SERVICES, INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF AQUATIC 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

This Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of the 1st day of October, 
2018, by and between: 

Poinciana Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated 
in Polle County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 135 West Central 
Boulevard, Suite 320, Orlando, Florida 32801 (the "District"); and 

Clarke Aquatic Semces, Inc. an Illinois corporation, whose local address is 
3036 Michigan Avenue, Kissimmee, Florida 34744 (the "Contractor," and 
together with the District, the "Parties "). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was established to plan, construct, install, acquire, finance, 
manage, and operate public improvements and community facilities pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes.; and 

WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide aquatic 
maintenance services for the storm.water management ponds within the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted a price quotation and represents that it is qualified to 
serve as an aquatic maintenance contractor and provide such services to the District. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2. MANNER OF CONTRACIOR'S PERFORMANCE • 
. _ _ ,...,~ ,,.,.., & ·.:·: . ---- - - ~- .:r;,a,c iliiiL . -•- - _JIFF~ . ·-·-.,· .. -.:....,,- ■ . ' -

A. The Contractor shall provide the specific aquatic maintenance services as shown in 
Exhibit A, attached and incorporated herein (the .. Services") within the storm.water 
management ponds within the District idcmtified in Exhibit B, attached and 
incorporated herein. 

B. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District 
and in accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall use industry best practices 
and procedures when carrying out the Services including the Florida Friendly green 

1 



industry standards of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection. Any 
additional compensation for additional services shall be paid only as negotiated 
between the parties and upon the written authoriz.ation of the District. 

1. At no time shall the Contractor utilize any products, compounds, or materials 
that contain copper in any form in any of the water bodies within the project 
area unless such products, compounds, or materials are specifically approved 
for usage in water bodies by both the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
and the State of Florida. Usage of such products, compounds, or materials 
must also be in compliance with applicable Southwest Florida Water 
Management District ("SWFWMD") rules and any and all SWFWMD 
permits issued to the District 

2. Contractor shall ensure that employees who work with registered and 
restricted-use herbicides are certified as to qualifications for handling and 
applying material safely and correctly in accordance with the Florida Pesticide 
Law administered by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services. Due to the presence of wetlands, such employees shall possess a 
Florida Aquatic Pesticide License and other applicable certifications. The 
Contractor shall also be familiar with the Fish and Wildlife Conservation 
Commission's Chapter 68F-20: Aquatic Plant Management Permits. Prior to 
the utilization of herbicides on site, the Contractor will furnish to the District, 
copies of all required licenses and applicable permits for treatment and/or 
removal of aquatic plants in waters of the State. The Contractor shall at all 
times abide by each herbicide label. 

C. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to this 
Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations affecting 
the provision of the Services. 

D. The Contractor shall report directly to the District's Designee who shall be the 
District Manager. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the 
District, its residents and landowners from damage and shall follow and be 
responsible for the Services set forth in Exhibit A. Contractor agrees to repair any 

~r!lii·~-- •rliiiiii~.,...,."""·=Bi"'""?.-·:..."".;~"14f.!.~fuili~~~ re~ulting =~ ~~tr a;: r~~- acfu1!ie~ -~~l, .. ~ ?r£ ~~ ~ ~_Enty-fo~(211 .;. ... iiiii=ii-.. ~•-: ii!!i_ iiif!i!!;r_-"""•';;;i;; 111!1. __ lil&■ 

SECTION 3. COMPENSATION; TERM. 

A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement and Exhibit A, the 
District shall pay Contractor Eight Thousand Six Hundred Sixteen Dollars and Sixty
Six Cents ($8,616.66) per month, which amount includes all tools, labor, and 
materials necessary to complete the Services. The term of this Agreement shall be 
from October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019, unless terminated earlier in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

2 



B. If the District should desire additional work or services not provided in Exhibit A, 
the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or 
services. Upon successful negotiations, the parties shall agree in writing to a work 
order, addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement as set forth in Section 4 
herein. 

C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 
Contractor that all subcontractors, material me~ suppliers or laborers be paid and 
require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be 
submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, 
and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of 
said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition 
precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form 
satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to 
the District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with 
regard to the withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, 
Workmen's Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, a11d similar 
payroll deductions from the wages of employees. 

D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices. 
Further, the Contractor agrees to render an invoice to the District, in writing, which 
shall be delivered or mailed to the District by the fifth (5th) day of the next 
succeeding month. This invoi~ is due and payable within forty-five ( 45) days of 
receipt by the District, or in accordance with Florida's Prompt Payment Act, 
whichever is sooner . The invoice shall include such supporting information as the 
District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 

SECTION 4. CHANGE ORDERS. Contractor understands that the Services may be 
reduced, enlarged or otherwise modified in scope. If any additional Services are proposed 
beyond those identified in this Agreement, Contractor shall perform them but only after 
receiving a 'Written change order from the District Contractor shall cooperate with and assist the 
District in preparing and determining the scope of any change order. In the event the service 
represents a unit price set forth in this Agreement, Contractor's compensation shall be adjusted 
for the added or deducted services proposed by the change order in accordance with the unit 

_ • :erices_es~!>~~hed ~ the A~ee~~nt. In tl].e event ~ ~!~~~ is,!}Q~~~P!.~Ete_d by al~p -~-?,.--:. _ il!R 
··-'-- -·\inn pi'Ice set forth m mis .AgteemehtConir ff!fo ·'sc ompensa hon shall be adJUStedTor the~de 

or deducted services proposed by the change order as reasonably determined by the District in 
conference with the Contractor . 

SECTION 5. INSURANCE. Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance 
during the performance of the Services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than 
the following: 

Workers Compensation statutory 

3 



General Liability 
Bodily Injury (including contractual) 
Property Damage (including contractual) 

Automobile Liability (if applicable) 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage 

Pollution Liability 

Herbicide/Pesticide Applicators Coverage 

$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

Contractor shall provide the District with a certificate naming the District, its officers, 
agents and employees as an additional insured. At no time shall Contractor be without insurance 
in the above amounts. No policy may be canceled during the term of this Agreement without at 
least thirty (30) days written notice to the District. An insurance certificate evidencing 
compliance with this section shall be sent to the District prior to the commencement of any 
performance under this Agreement. 

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times 
the relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 
and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the District . Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, 
subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor. The parties acknowledge 
that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall hire and pay 
all of Contractor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of District and 
at all .times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and control. 

In particular, District will not: i) Withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor's 
payments; ii) Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor's 
behalf; iii) Withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) Make disability 
insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) Obtain workers' compensation insurance 
on behalf of Contractor. 

Jii!l· ·"'"'¼:.'"'··,. 2 
·- - --sEcr16W"' ·7~ ~MPdANcl-'ftlrt'ff'I'.:AWs;'°1Jrh'1NANCES AND REG~_,: ... niiiiiii,;o~N!!i[iii .. ~T~hllle•••l!liP.:se, ... ~ 
Contractor shall keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and 
Federal laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in 
writing within five (5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a 
report of a violation or an alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental 
body or agency or subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this 
Agreement or any action of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or 
materialmen, or with respect to terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety 
appliances, or any other requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with 
any requirement of such agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, 

4 



·•ye~ 

request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an alleged violation, the District may 
terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon the giving of notice of 
termination. 

SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE, A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at 
law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or 
specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit 
or impair the District's right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 9. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either party is required 
to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs 
incurred, including reasonable attorney's fees, paralegal fees, expert witness fees and costs for 
trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

SECTION 10. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained 
in this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
District and the Contractor. 

SECTION 11. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District 
and the Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the 
Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 
instrument. 

SECTION 12. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 

A. If to District: 

---· 
With a copy to: 

B. If to Contractor: 

Poinciana Community Development District 
135 West Central Boulevard, Suite 320 
Orlando, Florida 3280 I 
Attn: District Manager 

Hopping Green & Sams PA 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn:MichaelC.Eckert 

Clarke Aquatic Services, Inc. 
3036 Michigan Avenue 
Kissimmee, Florida 34744 
Attn: Pete Deglomine 

5 



i'Y: .·. aw 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. 
Saturdays, SWldays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver 
Notice on behalf of the District and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices 
are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or 
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to 
the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

SECTION 13. ARM'S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated 
fully between the District and the Contractor as an arm• s length transaction. Both parties 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the 
case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties 
are deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will 
not be interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor. 

SECTION 14. TlllRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit 
of the District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, 
to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the District and the Contractor any right. remedy, or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 
the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 

SECTION 15. AsSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the 
other. 

SECTION 16. APPLICABLE LA w AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida. Venue shall be in Polle Colfil_ , Florida , _ 

""'·,- M - -

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION. 

A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 
agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from any 
and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, 
penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or 
otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Services to be 
performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in connection with 
this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement 

6 



proceedings with respect thereto. Additionally, nothing in this Agreement requires 
Contractor to indemnify the District for the District's percentage of fault if the District is 
adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and Contractor 
as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District for any and all 
percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, regardless 
whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault. Contractor further 
agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's 
limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute. 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys' fees, paralegal fees 
(incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), any interest, 
expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments against the District. 

SECTION 18. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond 
any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by 
the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing· in this 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim 
which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of 
law. 

SECTION 19. TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement for cause by providing thirty (30) days written notice of tennination to the District; 
provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any 
failure under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this 
Agreement immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. 
The District shall provide thirty (30) days written notice oftennination without cause. Upon any 
termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services 
rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off 
sets the District may have against the Contractor as the sole means of recovery for termination. 

SECTION 20. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, 
spe<;ifications, ideas, concepts, designs. sketches, models, programs, software, creation, 

.. in~en.~on~, reports, o~_other:~~bJ~ work Pf~d~~ ~~i?inall~_--devel?,:ped by C?~~~c~purjPant , 
·-- !F""··· .. 7a • . ;'5<.-~-.:8'' ""-·•---,~b this Agreeme:ilrsliaJJTe· an&5remafiffl.! soie"'aiia ei1c1fus1ve property onil"e D1stncr when 

developed and shall be considered work for hire. 

SECTION 21. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. Contractor understands 
and agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this 
Agreement may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agree.s to comply with all 
applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to 
Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records 
custodian for the District is George Flint ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other 
requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain 

7 

• !i!!· .-.. - ·;~·:: 



public records required by the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public 
Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure· that public records which are exempt or 
confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as 
authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract term if the 
Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) 
upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public records in 
Contractor's possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements 
for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred 
by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential· and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a fonnat that is compatible with Microsoft 
Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBUC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS, GMS-CENTRAL FLORIDA, LLC, AT (407) 841-5S24, 
GFLINT@GMSCFL.COM, OR 13S WEST CENTRAL BOULEVARD, 
SUITE 320, ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32801. 

SECTION 22. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 

SECTION 23. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this Agreement; 

SECTION 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and 
complete expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

8 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day 
and year first written above. 

ATTEST: 

D=--=~ t'--
Wi1ness 

Exhibit A: 
ExhibitB: 

Scope of Services 
Identification of Ponds 

POINCIANA COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

b.~ ~ 
ARKE~ TIC SERVICES, INC. 

l\..~J__ .. ~ 
By: -c. . t: f ot'\o\.; I\.~ 
Its: C-e """'f2.o/ ~ ,s,,v f 'J / 1,9A.., J 

9 



- ·; M 

Poinciana CPO 

Exhibit A 
·scope of 
Services 

Aq111iic PlantMaint~ 
Scope of Services 

Scptember2013 

Scope of Services 

t. PROJECT SCOPE 

The Contnidor shall perfo1:111 maintenance tel'Vicea of t~ .Pointiima CDD PoQda shown on the map in &hibil D. 
MJrintmiml:e services of the areas shown in the Contract DrawiDg_a will iiiohide, but are 1IOl Jimited to, b'eatmcnt 
.nmicmil and o!Tsitc disposal of"nui!;ance vegetation" and alp ireatmetit. The removal or treatment of nuisance 
1pedcs sbalJ oa:ur at a frequency thal prohibits :llowrcr-or s,eec1 pro4uction. The ~ce scrvic:es will c:omjlly 
with the ~irmnenta Silt forth witl)ill thia Scope of~ The fQ!loW.ing ii a Pil>ject ~ ~ the 
various enu~cs wlU!in the Poil!ciaPa tf)D and the limit$ of~. 

1.1 Gueral Overilew 

SollviJB. IQC&ted iG ~lkCotmly mulb of Pleaiint Bill Road, is I planned residential community. 

U Commu.nlty DevelopmentDhbic:t (Cl>D) 

The P~inciana Com11111nity Development Diatriot ('4Disbic:r' or "COD") is a special-J)l!JpCIM Ac)Vcmmeill 
which was cn:atm purii1latJr to Cilajlter 190, Plcnida Statutq and establi&hi:d on the JllOl>erty via an 
ordiname enaacd, ordtn:d t11d approved by PollcCouilty. 

The CDP areas to be iQaluded in tins aquatic plant maintenance SCQPe of Services include CDD
rnmiaged stomiwater-managc;mcnt tJOllds, outtails and Rlatcd improvemtnts. ~ areq ere 
numbered on the enatbcd inap. 

1.3 f'olld Mauiemeot Prognm ObJectm:s 

The Poincil!D8 COD desires to manage its stounwater ponds in 11, way that 4irects the ponds 
toward a natural bal'°pe 1bat redU(\eS the need for dl~ii:al conlIOI ()f aquatjc :plants utili~ng 
"Florida FrlendlY"" Landscaping .. prllClices. "Florida Friendly J3esl Management Practices for 
Protection of Water Resouites by the Gteen lndpstries, 1

' Florida ..,SP, 2008 edition 
http://www.dep state.:flJ!,Slwater(!JOnpolnllciocs{nonpojnttmHud:bmp-en-12.290&:pdf and other 
TeSPUtces llelting lorillbest pmctlte$ f'or the protection o'fwatrionts. Accordingly, the fo1lowill8 
objectives for thiii pro~ are jdentified: 

• To. provide l'CIJlQllSl'ble ~vifomntmlal ecological Dl8Jl8P?leDt of the lakes and SI01DIWllel' 
fa~itil!S under lhc 111~f juri.idiclion of the Poll!Ciaaa q;)l). 

• To ·eliminate or bring und• CQIIUOI all eitOtic bivuivc: lllld pmblematic native aquatic plalllS ln 
the CD D's lakes and sconnwater facilities. · 

• To ensure ihat the lakes "1d stannwater IKU$tia are main\ained to e~ an envlronmmully 
soWid and aesthctic:aily 11ppaalh1g aq\llllic ~~\>' , 

• T11-. ~ Pesi Management (1PM) ~ctices in meelin& lhe&e objediVCI!, 

ln~cgratTPest 0M'=:aciiilt ff~e1RWM ~ ~"f;g- ~ aqu.atfu -~eiau-;; "13118SolleilTwi!h --•;,i:~<11-- .. ~-~- !ll!!!ffi!!!!!illllll!iiP 
minimum Impact on hWIW) heaitli. the en~~ sud illlil~ org&IUSIIIS. 1PM is not a shlg~ 
chcln~I approacb or~ b!ll a dec:isiOJHlllkiog proccsa lhl!l :qiYl!lve& a combination of )lfflt1ices 11> 
CQDll'ol probleni$'. Control te.otics ca1i ilitilude culturalor biologlcal mCBSllta. For CUDlplc, red\lc!:IOil of 
likesbore f"ertU~ng activitiq, installation of shoreline ,Plaid&, stocking triptoia caip, poild aeration ilnd/or 
inc:11:11SCd edui:alion of 1hc publla on 1PM ~ces and l)Olelitlal effecu of pesticide& 0i1 health lilld die 
envil'Ollillciit mlglii be eorisiilered for fell~f the de&in:1;1 l!Btural b:alanoe. JPM i'eelLiiies more 
infomml(III, lhought $!d team plenning daan ordi11111Y~ single J!ppl'OllCh management sbalcgics, bu1 the 

Page2ofl!J 

10 



Poillclana COD 
Aquatic Plan.t Mamlt1IBIIU 

SQOPt ofSer:vii:a 
September 2013 

outcome ill a healthier CQIJIJDUllity and cnvinmme!ll,-1111d. lowtr mtn~cnt co,u. There£qre, the primary 
servioc desin:d rrom the l\qualio Mainten11nce Conuac:tor ("Contrador") ., lhe c:ontr:acw's k®wled&1: 
about B(IIIIWC systems and plailt management, and not the Coritralilor's ability to apply pe&titiiles. 

1.4 Ccmtnctor Adhere~ to tbe Scope .of Services 

The Cont~or shall recognize and perfo~ m 1cc:Qld1nce with the: IXID\m:I ti:rms, wrlJtc:n spccifiCl!ltions, 
and/ot draw.ingll conwnm ot reffflmeed .hmfip. 

1.5 Accm co .Jobslte 

The D.istrict shall furnish IICeeia to all areas of the jobslte where the Collll'lctar is rc,qui~ to perform 
undcr the tenns of this Scope of Services. 

l. Genenl Rcquinme■tt Hd Pntcedur:t, 

l'be Conbactor shall meet the requirelllllll!S 1,11d follow the prociellw'CS associated with au items si:t forth in the: 
Coiitnict ~ including, !>Id not li!nited to, the l'olloq: · · 

2.1 Open*• P~ares 

The CQ!it~ sliall l)Cl'.limn tho basia services 011Uined w(Uun th~ ScQPC of Scmc;es !,,elw~ lhe•h9W'S 
of 7:0Q 11!,m. aa~ S:OQ p.1JL, Mondayw.ougb Friday ll!ln. ~facd ~i~ 91' di~OII by~ District 
throl,lgb its bi~ Ma,iager. The CcliuacJor may submit II ffll11_est for a.4dmolllll opemlion time, in 
fCSIIOIJ&Olo poor~ ~nll, to be rc;viewed for.appl'OVel by~ D~ 1'olaaag«or i~ °'*-Pee. 
Thi: .District Manager or irs Designee wit, designate whett Q>niratwr's crew will = ~~ lu~c:s, 
an!! !isl: tel;lloOm lilcili1ieii, llmpioyeo perso11net vehicles will be padccd only in aceas designated bythe 
Distric,t. The Contractor·shall be rmpinifible· for security ofihe malntenanee lteils dnring working hours 
and i'or loddng all gale$ (if applieabli:) tecii dily. 

2.2 Key J>enounel 

2.2.1 All Services lhall be lbllll8ged and/or dircetcd by key pei30IUJOI idcntimid w Clic Conbm:tOr Ill the 
proposal. Any clwigca ill~ assigned.lcr;y personnel iliall be 111bjoct to approval by thc Disuidl 
Man&;ger. Where applicable. the Conttador shill ll:qulte tbal certificalions, ilainin&, ete,; be sec:un:d 
and gpclalcd for all employees for thc lJlllinti:nance .aJid 11,chnicid services penonitcd undtt Ibis 
®l:it!!!CI- . 

2.2.2 Contractor shall provi4e one (l) PmJtiet Min.ager who is knowledg~le. of~ Conu:actws ~ily 
aclivitjes wl)en perflllllled at 1h~ sili:. This MllllllF r;b~ !iel'Ye.-S tbe point of ~tact between the 
District ~r •uJ Conln;ctor. The l'r!>,ject Mauger s1tall bo ~iblo tbr coordinatil)g ~ 
ac~uled services wilb \he District Maruiger 111d t'or the 1iinely schedulillg r,,f ~nsehedulod 
!1l8int~ceaervices. 

2.2.3 Con~c:tor will provide thc ~ and ~ of the onsi<e. foreman that will be: responsib~ for 
supervising lllld/or completing all field servli=. The i'611imc ahall list thc 6m1s who have cmplo~ 
th.cl foreman far wort; Jimilarto that lo lie pcrfamli:d under the Conlial:t. Conliactor must demonstrate 
chet the Oilsile fiimDan cen identify IJ1l the plant· species that an: included as nuisaiule w:ptalion on 
~!ipIOjCCI. 

_,..._..,, .. _,., __ . .,..,.e;:w·•!!i_ r,,z.;,;_.:...,. .. V?iii• _,_ ___ ,._, _ _,,., ua1 ··-· ,_, _ - ----: -e-- .:ilRW : ......... ,u~ - . · 
2.2.◄ Thr. ~~r shall CD$1ll'e that all ~ployccs who u~ or ~ }n -coatact IVith registered 8!ld 

.restri<:ied-u.-herbicld~ ~ .certified as ~u~ by tbe appropria!ll ~gulatory agel!cics and lite 
knaw!e,c!~blc as 10 qualifi~l011$ for handling material safely and cmrcctly in acconlance wil:h .iii: 

P•gej of i9 



Poi11c;.na COD 
Aquallc i!t1111 Maintenance 

Scope of.Services 
Seplember 2013 

r'edeml Eoviiotullcntal Jlesticido Control Act of I 972 (PL92-Sl 6, FIFRA). Sul:h omployees :shalf aiso 
11QSSeSS, .or be under the direct il!pcrvisfon of an employee who possesses the Florida Dcpanmen1 of 
Agricuhllre's P11blic: Applicator Certification for use of restricted ~ides. 

2.3 Penolllld Dffll Code 

Tho Contractor shall CIISlll'C lhat e111ployecs worldng oa lhe Project wll wear wdf'Olllll or professional 
au~ ai ell times. Cl~ Jhat ~ _or implies ob_sceoe language or ·gr!lp~ 4egrading or 
ckuiCIDiilg_ connowicms, OT .In the opinion of the l)mrict Manaaer iB unaiabUY of any ~n. &bell be 
strictly pmlubitcd. The Conwctor persorutel sball wear ablrts ll au WIICS and shall - rootwar that 
conforms to safe \VOik practica, A1>plioitors mllBI use at least mlni1'11111D pc:monal proteelive equipment 
(PPB) nquired by the label oflhe materials being bandied. 

:u Peraoaad Coaduct 

The Contractor shall c~ sl!ict dlsclplinc lllld good Older-~ its employees on die flqect site. l'llo 
Con~ shall e1111m: that ita omplQllC!!S that CO{IUIJUoica"' and .ililoract with ihc Soliviti 00111munity and 
!hePolncialia CDDate Iatowlo.d&ea'ble of the Project and the 'llcrvices lhe Contractor is pafonning. 

25 SafetyProp-am 

The Contractor shall develop, imp)llll'lent;, and maintain a surety program for it$ opentions on thl: Proj~ 
Thal ~y prognun shall Include, at a minimum, a ,afl!ty policy, safety tules and procodufOII, safety 
trainillg. ~ for R:illforcing an4 mooi_taring ~fcty Jin!gmm; ~ f!,,- atcldent 
investigati-, providing and malnlaining oquipmcill wdy fea\!111:$, lUld taf«y Jtet>rd keq,iag. 

'J'bo Ointractor shall comply with all State of Florida and Federal and IQC81 ftlgllla!loas, rules and orders, 
as~ penain to OOC111,J11tional...rcty and health, the q(c op;,111.ion 811d socwityoflho l'acililu:s. 

The Contreotor shail pn:>Yi4c, at lhe Colnral:tor's expense, all eafety oquipmenl and -materials ~ry 
for and related to the work perfonncd by i1S miplo)'ee:s. S)lch cqaipmait villl indudc, but is not 'limited to 
items ncceaaiyto protect its employees and the getteral -public, if appl li::able. 

2,6 Fadllty Location 

The Dlalril:t thaP 11ot pl'QVide a faoility .on the Projcc1 Site for 1M Corll@Ctor u pert or1hia Seo~ of 
Services. No fuels, oil&« cheDlicels are permitted 10.bll stored 011 site. 

2. 7 Subc:ollfrllctvn 

If the Con~ as a part of lhc perfonnance of ils Services, dccts to employ Subcontmc:tors. the 
following shall epply: 

• The Co,itractor .shall re~ the right to hire quaJifia:1 Suboontracton to perf'Qnn $peeiallzed 
fimcti,ol)S or work including specia)m:d equip111ent as ~y be A!qllired, Ill Contractor's expense. 

• The. CoplDlclQJ' .shall be iaponsibla for, and coordinate with, tbe se:rvtces of any of i1S-Subco1itracton. 

• The _ContractQraball~ _all of _i!S ~ul>cont_~~OTSJ!U 001;1.~oo of employment, to•~ to the 
.. ;.---'iliijj!!!,il"i""-iiillllllTll!!l!!l!!l!l!!i!i"'""·-"'-""- ..,,.~ .. --""--"""'..:aiiiM"""- apptttable terms erlftondi1i~ .. Jiilht m .. & !i.-. &clh..ms. ~ 

Pat,e 4 of' 19 



-------- ----

Poinci11N1COO 
Aeju,U-C PlantM■ifllClllllce; 

~ofSorvicu 
September 2Ci 13 

2,8 Coa$ultants 

tr lhe Contractor, es a pan of the pc:rfonnancc of Its Sr.rviees, elects &o employ ccmsult1ms, lhe follawing 
shall apply: 

• The Conlrletor shall raerve the right 10 l!b:'e qual1r1Cd QlrlSul.tanlS to r,e:rtoll!l $poc;ialm:d fimctions or 
work including specialized equipment a may be requin:d, atConttaelor's CXF.f1Se 

• The Contmctor sblill bcJeSpmliible for, anilcoordinate with, lhe seJVic:es of any of its conBOllants. 

• The Co!ltra,ctor ~I ~ 'a11 CO_IISllltanls, as a condition !)f employmcnl, to .agree lo the applicable 
tenn& .and ooudilil>Jls iifeulified in ihe Contract Doclll!lC,1lts. 

2.9 D.oc:umeat Controlflld Data Managem~t 

~.9.1 D~inentCotrlrol 

The Col!Jnotor $hall keep •~ ~ of documa$ received and, if appll~ble, issl!Cld by 
this Conlnletor. A documerit ~ slu!ll 1,e inain(ained during the wqrlc of'tllis Contractor lo 
provide nicords en.~ the i!lfomuilioo IIVllil_able-to or (l'll/ll this Con~lor.. 1'lu: loll ■ball outline 
docunlcbl lilies ~ clala, Che odginalOI', -received dales, and ldfrom information. This log shall 
be updated monthly and submitted to the District M111181er when reillll:$led. 

2.9.2 Data Maintedance 

'Ihc Conuactor sbal\ aflu review wjth the Districi Managl':l', ratablish a systeiniitlc process for 
Ille inaertion of-rmsed sctil aild the inlellratioil of tha1 aatll into the overall Projc:cl phln after 
wrificalion for compatibility and consislelic;r of lhe infonnation ieceiYCd with aisiiilg 
information. 

2.9.3 Daui Disperaal 

'Sbould the Contractor cli&tn'bute data to Olhcrw, Ille Colltnlctor shall 11«:ument Ille llistnoution of 
dat,a by c:ompledng a lclteroftnnsmiltlll. A11 clistrlbution of data.shall be accompanied by a letter 
of transmilUII with a copy provided to thi,. District identi(ylng: 
• Partytowb<mi l,he dall is being~ 
• Originalion oflhe request for transfer 
• Name of data being .transferred 
• Type(s) of ~ta being tl'a\'l&fened 
• D~~f~ 
• Purpose of transfer, orwic:ofioformadon 
• Furthaaction ncaessiiiy 
The Coaliactot shall 9ropose a tonnat for, and 1cec:p a IQg of, au data trailst'ers for updates lo the 
Dimict Manager. 

2.J0 Verifica~ orDat11 

All data pr~de4 !O the ~lracror sbl!II b!l C1XB111ined for ~istency with l1$ iecor~ and ~ effons. 
~ Any obvf~.('1C!>l\.s~ , <be¥:th? -mwt+'Q ";5 m~~gJ~;103gcfilF':t•lly..awLin writing, u~ •. 

discovay . -

P.igc~ofl9 



PoiDc:iana .CDD 
~qua1ic; Pl!lll,1 MaioicnaPCt 

Scope ofSavices 
Scp1ember 2013 

2J. t Ownership ofl)ata 

It it ID be understood that all data transmitted, and material/equipment purchased under this contract by 
the Contractor or provided to lhe ·Conlractar, either by the pjstrici .or third parties, are the sole pmp~es 
of the Districi.. The Ccmtnictar ~l!all have t~porary c~ or the data while perfo,mii)g conuactecl 
~rvi~ for ihe Pniject. All • shall be ~ed lo the I!~ct 1li,ough 1hc Distri.ct Manager al the: 
~IDslon of ti& Project, after wllii:b no copies of the~ may be bpt by the Coub1,ctor withou~ !he 
Cl(J)res& writien permissibo of the ~!strict. 

The Dist~ sbaU relain the right to requh~ lbat the ContractQr transter all Projc:c1 data, !Mterial, or 
equlpmcntto the Di$trict immlliliat"cly upon fourteon (14) df:ys' writton nofi~ for any roason. The same: 
proc:edwes shall apply sllould it become necessary for the Contractor to -vollllllarily retm iaU Project data 
10 thcDlsuict. · 

2.Jl Qila]lt)' Control 

The District will have the iight, at any stase or the ope~pn, to reject any or all of the Contractor's 
servicc;s and maL!l('ials. wbidl In ~ District's opinion docs not meet the requlremorits or these 
$JleCilications. 

If nq11~ by the Oi.stri!rt Mlmlger, the ~lnlCtDr will niako weekly walk-throu~ reviews of the cotirc: 
i;ite rel_ated 10 -ris\lal obarvaliona and t_he Contractor's perf~~ The ·eonttac:tor will make. repair.s ind 
adj'!stmeJJIS, 11!1 dircct!'II. bf lbc D~ ~ger, d\!ring these site visits. A mOlllhly tdaintenance Report 
aball be pllJBted by the Co!'ilnH:t<ir !Ind &l!brnitted U! the District. Mao11gcr .gutliliing P.Dtcnti~ probl11:1;11 
areas imd the Conl!"aCIOr's _p~ c:orrectivc action, Upc;tlming wotlc approval reQl!est, coordination, 
schedul~g, ~c. TIie Contn.cJOr sllall provide lhe District Manager with a weekly updated mainteoanQC 
log iuJdreasing all activities occurring in that week. 

2.13 Insurance 

As IIIQl"C fully ctcscn"bcd in the ~mant fur mvices, the Conttactqr will provide W9rller's 
C.Ompensalion, Unemph>)'l;IICll~ Jnsutjmce, anil Bily other ,insuilull:i!: ~ulreiil by law. tn addilio11. 1h11 
Coffl!UC(Ol" will carry P.u.blic Uahiljty and AIIU>niobile li,mrance to ~ limila n:qulrcd by the Di$trict. 

2.14 Materials 

All maletials shall confonn lo bid apecifications. Toe Conlnlelor will 111ee1 all agricultural licensing and 
reporting requirements. 

2.15 Licensing and Permits 

Con1ra~or :shall l!IBli:itain any applicable license !llld pmnit requirements of Polk County, the Stale of 
Florida, the Federal Government es well as.all oiher requircm.ell.15 oflhe law. 

2.16 Liability 

Th,ougbou\ the c~ ~eel, Contnctor shall he liJble fO!' Af!.Y d,am&ge or any kind wha!lac;Yer that is 
011used by the negligence of the Coutractor, i1s ag~ or eil,lp1oyea •. ~ghout the tBntjrl; ~ a..:a, lhB 
Conuac1or shall tq,lace or rcjmb~ die Dis1rict for ~ ~ of ~laceme111 and/or i:qll!i_rs, at thi: 

..eontract~ : ... _ - __ . . . -_ -· . , · - . .. damaged· by berb1c:hl~ppli1;et~: :illii FF RW_ • 
inealianical equipmenL The Connctor shall be completely tcsp0M11lle for a1y enwonnieillal tlc:anup 
res11llin& li-oni chemical or litel spills that~ in the course i>fbusines$. 

Pegehif19 



I -

P.olnciana CDD 
Aquadc Planf Mainlcn8ne4' 

2.17 Conlroctor RespOlillbllltk,s 

2. 17. I The ConlnM:tor dial I have demOIISt• i:Xpcrionce in total pond system 1118DQemc:nt. 
ContiaClor personnel applying h~dca tor the 111,ana,aemClll 1>( a~tic pl111t1 shall ho 
cmifled/lic;,emed by 1hl: Flofida Department of Agriculture. and Consume, Service& (FDACS) 
for Aquatic: Pest Conbol. 

2.17 :J. Al a minumµn. lhe job sllj)Crvisor aPd ideally all cm site i,c=nomiel shall have been trained In 
lllt~ed Pest Mal\lganeat. Florida Fricn(ily ~l praeiiCOB ar similar best 
managCIIICllt pillClliccs, Eviclcncc of auch traming will be provided. 

2.17.3 No pi:st lll8Qllgc;neat 11'eatmenls ate to be canducted 1111less lhe J)l'Oblem has been ldentiticdand 
acotrted. J'ntegnicd Pest Management (1PM) is a ~lon-maldng app!'OBCh to manqing 
i!IVlll!ive Md undcsimblc vegeiati_on. Monitoril!g aud identification of the problem 1B one ·or·thc 
most impOitBnt compoOChts ofJPM, 

2.17.4 The Contnctor will 111!1 lhe INS! toxic herbicides~ wbeo other c:ontrol mc:thods would DOI 
l,e ~Ye or ~ical in .maintaining th~ eslllbllshed lev~ of service. 

2..17 .S Tb,e ConttJCtor will awid diSNplion of f!llllllal cnen:iil:$ by becomli:ig familiar with beneficial 
orpnisma. ~ <;l!)mrac:tor w1ft use availablc c:harts M6 litcre~ to CVllluatc impac:t of conlrol 
sttatcgi-. tnd ibcir toxic:it)' to specific n11wal enemies. 

2.17.6 Pt.Slicidc: ~ mi VIII)' from Ol1C area to another, o. location to anot~. and-even from 
one iear to the n~I i11 the same l_oc:ation. JI is essen.tial 111/bcn pesticides have to ht used to 
select the ~t .Dlllteriais based upon tbeit least &o1ddmpact ind efficacy. ~ keeping 
will bfi uaed to suppon Kle!nioos. 

2.17. 7 ,tegillar monitoring of i>=L and btneti(:i.al poplllati0Jl$ wil.l ddermiac lhe opti""1 tilllOII fot 
appl,Ying JJCS'icid!IS or oilier practices imd to Q1hance their effecllv~ess. Tlie Coottaai9r wiU 
co.nll01 undesirable vegclatioli during the most wl--le point iii ihcir Ii&: eycle or growlh 
pcnod. Young, actively growins wecd8 ara usually the easies! lb control or remove. The 
ContnictorwiU control weeds befoJe they pn,duee Reds. 

2.17.8 The Contractor will follow 1bc label lo ddermlnc the mtc and method of application. The 
control ac:ti<in ~hoscn must foc:u, on ibe site of lhe 1ffl)bl11111 so 'that ooly the an:as ihal need to 
be: 1a:atcd Bie Wgeied. Prop~.application will maximize effi:ctivcness an(! minimize eff'ec:ts on 
beneficW organisms. The Boal is to 11$ the mast envjroiUQenta]Jy leSpOl!Slole and effectiw 
peeticide, 

2.17.9 Liq1,1id s_prays mast not be applied w~n winds o,c:eed 10 mph 10 ~ aay undesirable 
drift.. 

2.1 'l.l O Pcnoimel essigned to this contract. shall 111C at least IIUIWlllllD personal p~ive equipment 
(PPE) ~aired by the label of materials being handled. 

2.17.11 7he ~nllilelOr wm -=-blish action lbresholds for UDdairable pliant levels to determine when 
· num.l,m or siluations pose a problem. The Contractor will a.illlaio recotds of numbers or 
Jclnds of problems-to traek occurrence and to evaluate i11:tl011s taken 

• Proper appllc:alion techniqWDG 
• Knowledge and ac1ions 10 follow in 1he even1 of a pesticide spill 

ra,c7 ofl9 



·~ TI 

Poinciana COD 
Aq111tic Plant Main~c 

S.:.ofSavices 
September 2013 

• Proper pesticide tmosporting and handling~ 
• Cleauingmid i:alibration of equipment procedun:s 
• Slo,age and dbposal of ~clde cbntainenl 
• S~ and. record .beping - lillDllll8I)' iq,orts of pond obserwtions and muagement 

strateaies ere io be to11linely filed with lhe District M8"ger 
• Strict compliance with w:h EPA label's PPE~ts 
• t,'lain!CDIDOO ofup-tlH!ate records of pesticidt:s11pplied, by IIC8tmt:nt 11rea. 

2.17 .13 Use of.any product being phased 0111 or lianncd by Shue or Federal 11geacies is prohibited 1111dcr 
this contract. 

2.17.14 The Co11uactor 1baU proYidll at his own risk and cost, all Ja1lf3(, materials, tuola, cquipmcot. 
transpoitalion, hauling, biological CQnU01s, pes!id4es, cheDlicalJ and other items ~ to 
perform 1hc aquatit plant 111811~1 work under lhiB contract.. 

,2.17 .IS .;\II work shall ~ performed on -wcekda)'S during normal blllina8 hows UD1ess other 
amna11111cnls IU"O 111111!~ on a case-by-case basis. 

2.17.16 Aa:eis to pond wotk site$ s:an ao.melilnes bfJ ·limited; th~oie, ATV °'e nther th!!D tni" i8 
ptefecred. Pond ban.~. littoral shelvet and oth1;r portions or the work site sh411 11at be ruued or 
Clberwiee d&Jlll'lgcd, Elcel@i)OWcrcd vehicles arc~ wbae pra_ctical, b11t mumeci. gas 
engiQos may ill&O be Used. Tf needed. each pond is aq:eu,1,le for boat 14unc:hing liom II Slllllll 
lNclt. . 

2.17 .17 Paper,_ C811&; lrJub, and other d,ebris shall be n:moved ~ tbe smfaco ohtorm water n:tcntloo 
ponds when lbe Contractor is using a watmmall as pt ofhis aperati01111; 

COORDINATION 

The C.Onlraclor shall provide coordination with 1be Distr.ic:t tbr all itemnssociated with the requirements of this 
AgremeoL 

3.l General CoordiDatioD 

The ~or ~I provide coordination. wilh the District M1111Bgcr for -all ltc111$ associated with tllc 
reqaimnentsoflbis ~-

The Contractor shall be avallabli: to mQIII with lbe District.Manager u app!Qllriate, on a monthly bas.is roe 
an inspection 1111d walk-throllgh iillritlg nonnal business bows. ·ne inspection $llalJ be scboduled wilh the 
Dlstr!ct Malll!Fl''S ana the ConlJUtOl"s represenauives wilh a multing punch 11st. of P,nlblem areas and 
conediw aaiinis to be n:vicwt;d eiicb ml)D.th or as time allows. The Contractor shall be .responsible l'or 
immccli/;ltely notifying thee Dilllrict ManatCT of any 11nd all issues, damage, and/or dai:linc directly ,¢lated 
to the Ccn'1i11Ctor's scope. ofwork. 

Those inspc:cllon meetings sbilll also &el)le as a forum lbr the eia:hangc of inl'ormation, identification of 
pertinent and ¢titical issues, dctennination of en action plau 1111d licbcdulc for ~lvbic those Issues. 
~cw .of sciboduJe a.ad budget. stalll$; and c,thcr iiM:s deemed appmpriale by the D!strictManager or the 
Contnictor-. ~ Comra~i.liall :NC0!1l·and distoDUte llOICS of each mee\illa loatl an~ witbi(I fiYe 
(S) bllii~ cliY6.. as wcJI. as _lllhet..Dll. ·g.L~ wiih:# .1"1eecUo;.la!.ow,.Tlic, Dislrict Manager smin -~ -lhe =- .... -•-.iij•~-••• -·- incelingtin1e!liifr1>COiToii;•·-·- -·- -. ,.. ---~ -. 1 ·· - · ._... -, ... _ _,_ --_a -3lllilf? 



Poiociana COD Scope.of Scrvia::l 
Septeaiber 2013 Aqu,IK: Planl Main~ 

,. 

In addili®. Contrattor. shall provide a reprclieDtative to a11end the !i.lontldy meeting of the PQincwia CDD 
Boaid of Supei'Yisors if ll!qllejited to do so by .the Dialrict Maila~- Thii; ~!alive S"811 be 
knowledgeable cifthls. Projeot Scope and Scope of Sc:rv.iccs and shill be able to nspo.ad co any ques11c!ns 
llu, Disirict BQ81'd of Supervisors may have as 10 the day 10 day acilvities at the Project sirc pum1811l to 
this AJreenient. 

Goorc!ination oC tlle oon&tiuclion, Q~iOtl. llllCi gC!)ml ~enance is co°'idercd OIIC of lhe 111any 
ctjtica_l aclivi1ies of the Co~!)I.Qr. Fwthcr. C!!OJ'dim!tioo of lh_ose i:ft'orts with all parties inwlved, or, 
1)11!$C with a ~~bow. is cruc_lal to the suoccss of the Project. W!ii.le au P!!ri~ iavol~ with the 
Poinci•fl6 COD Project cannot bes identified at this time, 111 partial lill is pl.'Ovided "II& follow,: 

• CDD Disirict M~r 
• COD DiJlrict J:n&jneer 
• AVHO!MS,lnc;. 
• Toho Water Au\bority 
• Polk County and lts various de,partmmits 
• Florida DepaniQent of1'nump!ntalloii. 
• AdjaQm:i~p~y Owner$, as direc\ed by the District 

3.1 P~ltttng Q»ulderatfoo 

Poioaana CDO was pcl'lllitted 1hroup the ~lh. Florida Water Manageincnt Dilllril:t {SFW.MD), Florida 
~parllllCIII ofE11Y{ronme1>11I Proleelion (FDEP). 

3.J Contractor's ProJ~ Manager 

TI1c COl)traClar shall di:si,net• an on11te l'e)m:8eatative will\ ~eiice in llquini!: plant ll11!1lagcmi::nt 
who will be respon11ule ror ~· sapervislQii of the Contmctcr's wodc force <in the Project arid shall Kt 
as !be ~ point or-1aet, on a daily \;&sis, between \he 'District Mmmger: and _ibe Contni;1.or. Thi& 
Individual sluill maintllin a1 au times a means of beiil& COlltilctcd by !ht Dlstrict Mwger a11d shall 
respond to such calls within a ~01111ble ainOllllt flf lime. Thia indiYidlilll ishall be responsible for 
main~ining the Ccmtrac,or•s schedule of adivilies and notifyitig the D.isiric:t Minapr of rhll claiJy 
schedule for quality contn>l of the Contractor's servk:c and for arnngina md supe,vising unschedulc:d 
seiviceJequcsts by the District Manager. 

3.4 District Awareness 

The Maintenance Contractor shall be iesponsible forIIOlilying the District: 

• Ofanyaccidenlll involving lheCoD~ pel$0Mel or~on ~Proji:c1 
• Ohny ~cndi:d cul~ral practices that CDilld be ~ by the community, propeity owners or 

01ber contractors-to wpport the objectives flf the iiquatic pl.ailt manapmcnt 'J)Jtlgr&m, 
~ Ofllll)'desirablc·plants"thatliaiiedied ormesbowi!ii significant damage, whether or not they 8ft: 

be!~ to be as a ~l of plant ffl!IDagement activities 

SCJW>ULED OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

The Contr@tor ahall petform all !19rvj~ IIOll!lssli!Y t11 control and ramove nniaan~ lltgctation f.or thole arais of 
_ .,..,.._the Proj~ tb,at_pr,;,m. m_oet!_on. ,rr,JprJ:: ;;;b"'W.11.~~j~ -a !i.llnimum,.of monthiy. C.rol .sl>alL11iC _: Ii![ ·. a::. 

be defined us the eyjdcnce <if lleatment, o a ninllll!I of seventy pecccDl (70%) IIOJQOUS -.ad exotic: 1peeie. 
coverage, of target apecies to be tiealed. Noxious· aad cxolic wgetalion to lillgeted for 1reatmcn1 arc listed in 
Seciicin 4.6, below. Maintcnlirice witliin these ~ should be cOJidDCted to eil&ll1e the control of the: tmgeim 

P111!e9 of19 



4.-:! .. . 

l'o~n t"OP 
Aqilldc PIIOI M.ainlefW!l;e 

Sc:opeof~ 
Sq11Clllbcr 2013 

plenl specic:ll and lo prevent te•lofcstation• for lhe ~ of aquatic systein health and aesthetics. The Con1nic1or 
sha11 make a complete site inspection of the COD, spoci&callythe areas ofCDD maimenauce. .Exhibit O includes 
a plan identifying lhe general lboits of CDD mainteJlallDII by area. Services- generally descn"bed below. 

4.1 Geaerel Scope aocl l'ndi1:a 

4.1.1 Water Bodies Included in the Scope 

&hibit D desall>es the water bodies included in lb.II scope and tlieir dimensions. The scope generally 
consim oftwo parts; 

1) Mlint8118nce or water bodies s~ on &luoit D to consist of open wateraieas, shon:lines and outfalls 
ofihc ponds. The pcrimel~ aod surf'aoe area of each pond !s il1cludcd in an acQQmpiqi~g table.. 

2) Maintenance of devclaped littoml shelves jp selected po!!ds for their waterdc:ansiog qualities and 
habitat values. 

4.J,2 Natural Balaace of P9ads 

The ContraCIDr slulll uscp the COliclition ofdtie ~al die bcginniiiJ of !tie contnlc:l period~ dcvl:10)) 
11 plan directed towerd -.c;hievlog a moR-baJanocd condition. 'I'= C.Ollll!lctot will routinely appraise the 
eonditic,n of ~ -toe progress toward ~ a nawi"al ~cc. While it ia m:qJ!Oizeil that Sl!Ch a ~ 
~ght nqt be meheddimni lhe COlltt8Ct period. ~atstrataji.es "aod ~ a<tivities will 
be directed towanl that goal·and 1101 toward lteoping itie pPndJ In a ••new pond" coadilion. 

4.1.3 NoiOIIS Wl!ecla 

1'l)e Con1r11ctor shlll control submerged, emergent, and Ooating J!QJCious aquatic: wt:ei:1$ growing lo the 
waterways With lhell# ofBPA-eppn>ved daanicals in slrictucordancc of label ll)eeifications. 

4.IA Grus Carp 

Sterile grass carp 11111y have alraa.dy been distributed in the atOl'Olwater pondll. Tbe Cootrac:lor wIU be 
raponsible for maf1118inllJ8 outfall barriea per stocking pamit requirements and for adding additional 
fish if that is Pllrt of die plan. 

4.J.S laYIUiYe Exotic Weeu 

The ColllJ'lctof shall co~ submerged. emer:gept, and floating iu•-ve cx!)fic weeds growing :in !he 
pond!J l!lld pond~ irtcludilig uy fo=tod ed&ell, littoral sbelws and o111fiill area,s. Specifically, ~ 
Contractor ~I tli,gel and ICnVJve all spcc:las designated as 11.uiaan~ and iavasi.~ =Olic <:!us 1 or Clan 
D plan1 Sl!CCics, as deli~ by the florida. Exotic Pest Plant Caunc:fi (.FEPPC) 20.l l Rdltion, or as list~ 
below in Section 4.6, w.ithiD each wetland lD8Ul1eaancc area. SIICh control .. shell '1c c;ondllCted on au u
needed bam. 

4.1.(i l!ond Outflows 

1"bc Coatraclor shall maintain ~• noted pond oulflows 10 allow JIIOF drainage into nearby wellallds. 
This insures control water levels funotion as designed. 

._ - --.-~;iiiiiL: i!li!Ji ,a •. ~ __ -- ( g1 -____ : .. c._:_· 

4.1.'1 Native Plants 

Native plants are gcmi:rally to b!l eQ((IQl'lged to grow to enhance: !he aestbllliCli 8$ Wflll as provide a habita1 
Page tOofJ.9 

'!L:!!.::.!± -



1:F. . C---

----- -

Poinciana COD 
Aq·ualia Plant M1inklll11C11 

S;opeorService.s 
September 201 ~ 

for Dalive fiih and wildlife. 

4.1.B Shorelines and P®d Edges 

Cl• cqimu~i>n wilh on-silc m~Clllelll and l)jstriet siaff is key since the mai)agemant goal, c:en 
Viti)' from po!id lo pond. 

4.l Pond Open Water MalntellJIII~ 

The Contracror shall be respoosiblc for the development and bnplantnlatioo of a pteYeJltallve 
meinlC1111D0C proglilm. For Ifie algae conttol poruon. the Coouac:w is responsible fat taking all lhe 
preventative measures to control algae. 

4.3 Littoral Shelf Maiiltenance 

The Qmtractor shall perform monthly ~illtcnanci: within the littoral zones. Mainleil:iance will include 
monthly ■lie iospectlona. Jll$1IIDl ~oval and/or l\elbicidc applicatioii on lhe litioral shelves and lake 
bulb. 

4.4 Wetland l'resene Area Mai_ntenance 

The Co~or will peribnn quarterly malllle1111DCC wilhill p~ wc:lland ~ Meinlc1:1111l!le ~nts 
wiU include mmual l'!lffl0\181 of ~t nuillllCC and ciolie ~i1;1 111d pepodical herl!lcidc 
appli~OI!C, 

4,5 M!ti&iliioJI Ana .Maintc:naau 

The CQDtnetor will perfomJ quarterly malnt~ within Mitisati.on Areas. Mai11hmanco cwntc will 
include ihe Dl!ID!W rcnu,v.,J of ~ 1111lsance and CMtio species and ~lcal herbicide 
applications. 

4.6 T11riet Vegetation 

The CoiJU'li:tor shall controVremove all nuisance 1111d exotic vegetation includina, but not limited to, the 
foll.awing species, if present, within each of the maintaiBllce 1ll'CIS. The mllowing ¢!es ma_y be iii 
addiUon to lhe 2011 FEl'PC list. The limilS of the maln1enance aclivilic:s 1;hall be defined as all property 
watuward of the llmiis Ciftbe turf, including open water areas. · 

a. All species of cattails (Typha spp.) 
b. Cubie bulrush (Sc:ilpl!S cubcnsis) 
c. Pri~ willow (Ludwip. pet11viua) 
4, Seedbox{41dwiiui ~valvia) 
e. Wa~~ (L\ldwfaia!ep~~) 
f . Ail mi~ »p,eeic, 9filie fauii[yFabacuae 
g. Dog fennel (Eupatoriwn spp.) 
h. Caesarwee4 (Urena lobala) 
i. Canilioa Willow (S~ ~lini11JJ3) 
j. T•o ipass (Paliicum hemitomon) 
k. Cl~ ncinp vine (Miblila sceildens) 

__.. _ _ __ ii . Ji![RwT _. @s'\i11~ ~ -. 
m. Wat~ hyacin~ (Eicbhoruia cra~il>c=I) 
n. Tropical 8Qda apple 
o. Fropbit (UtqnobilDD q,onaia) 

P!'F ii ofl9 



Poinciana CDP 
Aqlllti; Pluu ~ 

SQQpe or Services 
Sqil&mber 2013 

p. NI spegca of algae fi!al)lelltous and ,uspended 
q. Common duck weed (1..anota minor) 
r. Salvinia (Salvinia minima) 
s. Hydrillir{Hydrilla V~c,11att 
1. Southcm Naiild (Najas guadllluj,ensis) 
u. Ai9lla (Amlla ~liGlana) 
v. Musk.arass (ai.ra spp,) 
w. Gilllll duckweed (Spirodclapolyrhlza) 

4. 7 J\bi11tenauc:e Methodology 

M:au,lenance mcthodolQ&Y lhall be detenuilied by lhe wgclative co111posiliau. within tjle $peci.fic pond 
~ Control .methods may-include, but ~ not limited to, select lie.rbicidc applications, tbecbanlcal 
ranaval and/or baild removal. Netural recnutment ofdcsitable.heriMM:eous vegetation outside the planted 
areas shall be pienilly allowed &id shall DDl be advcr&ely affected by mainumanco activitie.t unleua 
Cil1Lc:rwi$e dir«lcd by Dillricl. It ia lhi: intent ot the coottact to provide a vegi:iated littcmil r.olie witboul 
cteating au overgruwn appeanmce, 

4.'7.1 ~val Ttcluuquci; 

a. The Conwaetot shall l'al)(JYC nuisamic species fn,m within the plantod liltoral mncs·byb!ind or• 
direct¢ by the District Manager lo enSIR Iha! desirable Spl!Cies are DOI damaged by najnlenance 
activities. 

b. The Con~10r 1b~U be rtspon~iblt for ~vi.ng _ all individuals of ihe. aptcies listecUa Item 4.7 
above. Co!l~o,- sbaU ~vc all vegcu11lve ~ of the pllQt, ln~g roots, lllCGIS, and 
flow~fiuilu/1 parts. Th,e Contmtor slu!II mIJQ"II~ all coll~ ~ljOJI uom the site 011 a 
dally ~sis. All material ~oved fiom. !he i1111J1ediate w.oiil: ~c suJ1 lie di9S)Olle(l ofby the 
Conbactor off' the "Pn,ject Area. Dylng bloma~ of desirable herbacc:ous vegetatiD11 may remain 
inp1ace. 

e. The Conuaaor shall 11~ equipmeoL spacifically. clesi&ned for commm:ial ap,PU;cati~ of 
hed,lciilcs. Equipment shall be kq,t in gOl)id ~ and operatkmal condition Ill all times aod shall 
mei:t all~ reqniremenlS eatliblishcd [or the tWC of work. EquipJll!l.lll is &ilbjeicl to iruiJ-tjon 
and acceptance by the Di&trict Manager or-its doigaee. 

d. The Contraetor :sball _pmP,edy use 1111d diBJIOSC ot all chemicals and hcrblcidos in strict 8.QCCirdance 
will! applicable l.oi:al, State, aad Federal cnvitonmtntal n:glilations and shall indmuaify the 
District for any liabilities ~risins out of the Con~•s hamlling, use of, and disposal of said 
chemicals and herbicides. 

e. The Contractor shall ensure lhat employees who U$C .or are ill contact with registered and 
reslrictedusehorbicideslpestieides~certifiedasn,quindbytheap~rqulaimy.agcocies 
and arc knowledgeable as to qlUllitl~ far handling material w'ely an_d ~ITe!)Uy in 
aQ:Ol"daacc with the Federal Environmental Pesticide: Corttrol A1:e of I !112.(PL 92-516, FJFRA). 

Such employees Bl!8ll al~ ~. or be under the direct supervision of tlD eui,ployce who 
pqssessc:s, the Flo!'ida Departmen~· of'Agriculture's Public Applica!or Cenific;aiioi) fo,-use of 
restrililed herbicides. For purposes of the Scope, "pesticide$" shall referto "herbicides.~ _ 

__,.. ______ w .:·: J,iifJ :- ___ ■ 2·.·,;i;iiiio::., ··,.._7i.ii!'it1., ... •·· -~ .~- _. ___ _ :,_, ____ : - •- ·· ·_ -,,_,.,._..,.,,._ ·'""""'""--"''--.,,.:~111rrrr-.,.., .. ~--
r. ~ CootractQ£ $ball provide a Rabicidc Sunamary "Report lbr ll8Ch I.Qcation where nuisanoc 

5J)CCies conttol ocanil. These i:epon• shall include specific iritomiatlon incluifin& themllp o[ a.reas 
trtati:d, the applicBlor's name, the date, tbe·ehem~1(s)'used; lht ra~ lhe atUOUJtt applied. the 

l'age 12i>fl9 



@ ·· ··. ·p.._,.L . lf • .zi .. -- · 

Poinciana CDD 
Aqualic Pllfll Mllinlellal'IQC 

Scope o('Servii;es 
Septeniber 20 IJ 

BJ>plication lllle, lhe condition of growth being trailed, desi~ tesults and weather conditions 
(wind speed and dim:lion, tClilpCU~, piccijrilalion) under wbillb it was apr,licd. Completed 
ronns ~all be submitted to the District MaMger wilhin 10 days of the appllcttion event. 

g. The Cc>ntractat &hall ~ dcsinible trees or Olha' pla_ms, al no cost to the Disuict, that are 
injured or lost due .10 the Contrl!Ctor'& negligent acts or failure to perl'onn U1c Services. 

5. Onsdsedaled Malsrtmauce 

Tbe Contraccor $ball be equipped and orpnized to provi~ _any unscheduled maint.e11ance and repairs related to 
lhc Services pcnotmed lll1dcr this A&i;ecmcnl and if requu= by the Dislm:L. The following.ad~ lhc general 
procoilwa for unscheduled maintelLBJICC activit.ies. 

5.1 .General 

The Cc!Dlracior ahall be .RSpllll8ible for acklilional maintenance and COll'OClive actiaas rel,-tiw to Chis 
Scope witliln lhe limits dcsch1,ed unless directed 01.herwise by tl\e District Ma11qer. Unscheduled 
maintelll!)ce lltat mull$ ftom the Contractor's failure 10 pn>pcrly per/onn the Seivic:a under Ibis Scope 
of Servjees shaU not be considered an Additiapal Smvice and Jbercroillo &~I no, wamnt ad4itianal 
~•km to Ille Contractor. Unschedule(! maintenanc;e lhll!. in abb ~tractor's ~-~ Di~CI 
'Manager's opfolon, are n~ as ii ~ult of the Contractor's negliieht ae1s or fitlhire ro perform the·Servlces, 
!lhaU be deemed ~ AddlllonQI Service A14 sbl!,II, ~ th.e D~ Malil!ter's eleetiOII, be made by lbe 
Coll.lraclor "l!poll r-ipl 11f a Work Alllhorizalion From the DistricL When Ilia ~U'aCtor dc:tenn~ that 
Bil uo&cheduled ,nalntetill_!ICe _i, ne,ceuary,. the COJllralilor $1Ulll submit to the District Mallllger a Work 
Autnorlatlon n,nn ~ib _it C) togelfler .wilh 1be Qmtraclor's ~mate of the cost to perfonn the repair. 
Wheneye,- p,o~ble. this Worlc Authorization and cost i:slimale sbould be sent lo the bistclc:t awn (7) 
talenchrruys in advance ofth,e Cj111ll'actorperfoqning the .Servi~ Tht Di11ritt Mana~ shall n:1um one 
cxec11t«! ciopy Qf lh:e Work Aulho.riuliO!t ftirm and shall indicaie the met\od or C0111pcnsalion. In thl: 
eveol thcScrYioes ~ to be provided on !I urii1 price of lime-and-materials bllsls within seven (7) calendar 
days u~fl complc;tiOI! of the Servioes. the Conuaotor sball ~ubmit to the District Mai.aagcr :an itemized 
li$tiag or lite Qintractors costs to pei(onn tbe S~ices including all unit quantity illl:fflS or lll'bor, 
equipment, materjals, 111id $~tQCtor's Jl'COntingly. The ,iemized ligiing~ll be presen1cd h1 a foi'mat 
liccepta'ble (o the ·District ~ager and, If requested by Ilic: District Mwger. shall include: copies of 
iJJvoice$ From otbem providing work or materialll on the npair. 

S.2 U115c:hedultd Mahltenmce 

Thecontrec:torsball provide o~onal UJJ$Cbcd11led maintonance tllat is in rdditiou to the base Scope or 
Semqes. The Conlrac:tor shall f-ive a Work Autlll)rizalian from '1Je D~ct Manager and Bhall ~nd 
and complete lhe ~u~ within ~o (2) week&, or a mutually agreeable t\tlle w.itb the 1)1$triQ.t Mau.ager. 
The Co1!11'8Ctors .cost estimate tq provide th~ work shall be •pproved br t~ Pislrid M111111ger prior to 
commtneanCJJt. 'nle Conlracl.or shall be available !llld willing 10 · provide lhe followins unscheduled 
maialeoaacc seivicca: 

s.2.1 Maintcmuiec ofWclllands and Upland Buffer Areas 

,._.,_ -11.~·1 iiiThtif, . · Ji!!%-I Jactm•tii!pe'i~liiWiit:lect<!dunscheduled mainmmince-for'lfi!iliHi!': _jlliLrn·. • _ ■ 
or uuisanc:i: species control. Unsclieduled mainieuance ii restricted lo exoti!I imd nuisaace plilais 
within the buffers or wetlands as these areas an: to be.retained iit their natural state. The use of 
pesticides, herbicides or fcrulil'ielll shall be prohibited in the buff~ aild the cxistlns weiltln'd$ 

Paac:l3of19 



Pl>illciana COD 
Aq1111ic .Plant Maiiltauuac>e 

Scope ofSti'!lica. 
!let?!!=lllber 2013 

tlley protcc:t, except w~ usc;cl. in ~ with applicab1e law tnd pursuanl lo permitS f.n)m 
11gcncics bjvlngjurisdic:tioli lbcreowr alid conilstenl wi1h tbo manag~l intan of 1hese butren 
lliid wetlands. 

b. ff ~quested by Dislrict ~ger, tho Contractor &ball provide ll llllisanca species l'Clll0V8l plan 
spc:cific to each prolectcd wetland and buffer &Ma. This plan will detail the l!lel~ology 1111d 
iargct spc,cics wil)iin each arc::a. Wrilli:.n appr0val of the pl!ID by the District Manaaer will lie 
required priorto implementation. · 

C. The CODl[BCtor sball replace desirable ln:es or omcr plants, Bl no COIi {O the District, that are 
injured or Jost d111: to ·!he ContnlCtor's negtipi ~, ·m the pcrfonl!llDCe of 1he scliedu[cd and 
llilS~ulcd Service. 

S.2.2 Wctland Pla.Dliog 

a, The Dimict Manager may cl~ to direct the Contreclorto rmon: aquatic ~lion in planted 
li~oraJ ZO!l!!S dial are i~tificd in the Contract Documents, Tbe wolk includtd io the ~ion 
shall CCIIISist of funulihias, ~. • ~ ~ pllll)ls of the species, ~zc, and quality In 
the l~lion indiGBtcd or&l! dinlctcd by the D:istriot Manaaer. Funher, lhe woif( shall incl_ullc die 
maln~cc of ell plants ud plimtina areas until ~ by the Dlstrict, and fulfilling all 
parantee proviaiOllS as herein apcoiflcd, 

b. l'lant lnlnSJ)ortation shall comply with applicable Federal and Suite regulations. Upon ~ti->' 
lit the &ile, ell plants shall be inspcctc,cl l'ot coofonnity to~Jl:aliOJJs and for handle damage 

e. Planla specified ~rein shall be used llllll:IS sufficient evidence i~ sublllitlcd to Ille DimiCI 
Mager iii~ th~ plant ls unawllable. Altemale material .11111y be ulled upon receipt.of 
aulborizaUon from the Diltricl Mauger. No substitutions •~ be made williolll wrillen 
appiovaloflhcDislric1Manager. 

cl. The Co!ltnietor nil I\Wl\DtCC all plantuig WOik f'or a minimum period of 365 da.ys after Ilic: 
date cif inltallaiiaa. TIie ContractDr shall 'be responsible for lhe esiablillhmcnt or all spcdes 
planted. Eslabliatmicll1 aball be defmed as all plimla lllCCelSfully budding or leafing out. Before 
final acceplallco, the Collb"actor shall replace at no cost lo the Dislrici any plam nia1erial 
necessary to meet the above eril.eria. In lhc· event lhc: ~Clar has to l'C!)lai:e planl material, 
the Dlsliict _.get may allow such plan,t JDa!clia1. to remain through BD.Othm-e$iablislimcnl 
(365) period. 

e. Materials 

·1. The Contractor &h!ill furnish all pl11111S of the ~cs ~umed by the Di.strici. Manager. 
All pla!its sbaJJ lie ~e to aame as established by the American i!linl Committee on 
Horticulture n~lltUl'e publication "Standard Plant 'Nameg," 

2. The dciignatal llllUlorit)' for the ideatificatiOJI of all matcii:lls shall be 1~ two (2) 
P.tJblicalions of L,.H. Balley, "Hortusfr' mid the "Manual of CUlcivate.d PIPnts," and all 
specim.ei1S shall be tnie to type. name, de., 11 dcacribed hen:in. 

....,,._ __ , .,,,,._.'iil _ _,- .. ,.~.ii· iiil~L_.-• .,.-.i[11(1jj%111i!P!!!!.lliirill.l!i!El,.'.Mili!;lsr:w'•1•·.,.qu~~ .Conl18Ctort0@0vide~U~Jrtlj·.~;;~~II"1"91!!11i.ilEIF!R-..,... 
rneei"llie ~ai!'CfflCQIS for a Florida (lza4e I, listeo 111\der single upright trees in "Grad11.s 
a11d Siandards ~ Nurseiy P!an!S;, established by the Florida l>q,artment of Agriculture 
an!d Con!IUrner Servicc:s, 

Pago 14 qfl9 



Poineiana CDD 
J\qpalic fll!ffll Maintmence 

4. 'f'w11!ennore. irees shall minilDally be lhe ~llon size with a minimum height of 4 
fc:et ami c:aliper ~ure ofmid•hc:,ight ofO.S i11el,es to 0.75 inc}ics. 'the act!llllleight of 
the ~ il!StaUC!d In tb,t field slu!ll be clq,erulanl on Qlistmg si~ condi~Dp8.. rt is the:. 
Comractor•s tespon~biiii;y to ensun: ejch • ll8S suf6Cict¢ height to survive under 
exictiD& field col!Clitions. All irees shall be sound, healthy, lind vigorous. exhibit 
&ignificanl apio::ai gtowth .oo Ute mam stem. bc well bram;hed ~ shape,:, witb.fn nonnal 
ha:liii of iirowtb. of ~ color, and densely foliated when in leaf. They sliall have 
healihy, wel.1-devdoj>D<i root ~ and ,ball be free of disease· and mscct pests, eas, 
or larvie. · 

.s. All~ nia!Cria1s shall be provided f1Q111 •he fbllowing. mu c1'aes: four (4) tnch 
pot or ba~ root. 

11 ~ the O;,n~tofs ~!)O!l$lbllity to ensure each p~t -~ ~cicnt hejght ~ ~rvive 
u.oc1cr ex~g.Jield OODditiont. !JI plan!$~ !;le somid, hnltby and vigorous, be shaped 
within n~l habit of piwth, of~ color.and *sely l91iated ~ith in leaf. They 
s1-.11 be ~of dlseiise end .insect pest~. eggs, and Jamie. 

6. ~i, the eyept lh11t it ~- JiJ)plln;l)l lhet Nij 11Ureery supplyjng p~ for•_tbls wodc ~ 
knowingly 111\d CC!J1Sist4ntly !'CP.resadS !he~ or,1;ms as bcitia !)i81i;er !ban the ac~ 
gnde as deto,uiin!=(l by tho plw list according to ''Grl!4es end Staa"9rcls for Nu~ 
Pl!int," ·1!11 plllills •~)' de!ivenld lioin-&ui:h $11\lrce ihall betemav!'(I from lheJob ·al the 
Conb'acJor's expense, end no furlhcr plants ~•ill be acceptable from &!!Ch nur&ely 11atil 
'll!riUeil -viden.~ is siibrnitt~ and J:011firmecl tbat ill JDIW:rials for dollvmy haYC • 
lnspecitd-arul approve<i b>' IM Olslrict Maniget11s ~illJ of the gm~ represc:nt~. 

7. Conliincr-Orown Plan(s 

a.) 

b.) 

c.) 

Container-grown plams shill bive been trOW11 in a contaioi:r WJIO eoougb end 
fot sufficient time ·rorthll root ~mn to have dovel.aped enough 10 ho1d iii soil 
tog~er (inn and whalo. No plan~ sball be loose in tho container. Pl11rta which 
have bocomc fl!ll·bound or for which the lap system is 100 larifi for the size of 
the: c:Qnuiiner will not be IIQCepla'!ilc. 

Coll~ Ph1nts: Colll!Cted plants shall '1o ~ug with a root spread at least one
third sreater than nursery-g,own pllln!s ofthe~me species. 
13$1:Rool: 

(I) Phmt materials remo,ed &oin natural <ir mumade we1lands may be 
transpOTled to tbc lite •~ ~ rool p\~ ffoWC)ler, ~ provisi0Jl$ 
ml!st be made to prola:t this material, especially the roots, from 
desiccation. All plant material ti'atisporttcl in this 111111t11er must lie 
approved in writing by the Disuicl M111111gcr bof'o~ _proceeding with lhc 
·worlc. Otherwise, .ao ~ root plants shall be used 11nlass specifically 
required by the Dislricl. 

(2) Bate root 1?~ aba1I !!e dug e,lld deli~ With roots adequately 
pr:otcek:11 against dlymii out by means of 111oiS1 straw, OT other approved 

--.- •-·,➔.;· ____ ;;;;:·.;;· : .!f!!· !llii□ii-ll!l!!-l!l!!!lll[illi·ii!i· ··l!!!liii..,,··' ""',..,;cT":· •• ·a1,.Sbipping-conWn¢rS"llilall--.bc· . .-.hllii ~.--,.H IIMi!il:!!W· ""'i.:L .. · m 
~tm:lc;>r \l'POtl ;11ri~ llffcl i;hall b;D ~. if~- Plllllts 
which_ are 11Qt to be lmmedi!ltely planted ~•II Ii~ "heeled-in" in an 
'PJlfllvC!i m11Mer, in snolit C!D'(h or ti!hi!r sliital!le m~\1111, aod shall be 

Page IS of i9 



Polnci.e.na COD 
Aquati.e Pi.tu Maintenance 

S_CQpe of~Cl\'ic= 
September .zo 13 

properly cart:d for unlil planting. 

f. Planting; 

l . T'mie of Planting: Plant under favorable wWher conditions. At the option of, and under 
the Ml responsibility of the Comnctor, plan!ing opcridions may be conducted under 
um-eas0118hlc condilloos wiQiout additional compcnsallon. 

2. The District Manager« its design« shall _illBJ)OQl. the p!mits at the mac ofpl\Ulling. Plaata 
will be ~ected If improperly planted. ilttproper plantlng inc.ludes the followiag 
oondilions: exposed i:oois. not at ibc prope, aepth, or planted .in ~ ei~ too ~ or 
s~ow. The ()inlractr;,r ,!!all be responsible for t,ging t)l'c newly plan\C!d ~ with 
t111Veyor's ~pc so thaJ ihe plants ca1i lie easily ickmtified !llld ins.pected. (>}ants may not be 
storad ousitf tor more than two (l) COIIJCCllli~ days. Airy material stored Olisite for 
tonger pi:rio.dl of ~ may be rejected by 1M District Mana,ger or its desiattee. The 
Cotitra(:!Or should n.atify the Distriet at least five (SJ wolkiog dllys prior 10 111ovemc.nt of 
,Plllll lDB1l:rial onsitiS, and shall. roq1lffl the Dillllict M~ be present to inspect lhe 
plant matcn61 as it anives onsi1e. Thli Dislrlct Manager Of' its d~pee may reject all 
plant material not i~lt:d prior to planting, and ·the Conlnlctotsball m!JIOVII and iqilacc 
rejected material Wilhout addilioaa\ ~saiion. 

3, A,ll cantainen shaU be cut and opened fully, In ll Jlllllllier·such as wiUJ1Dt damage the rool 
ayilem. Containcr-gn>wn plants shall nDl be removed from the container until 
iml!llldiately before plaitling and with.all due care to ~vent dam:ageto the rool system. 

4, ~ Conuaclor shall men. ~ tree plant~ IUld shall submit a d,awiug !!> the Dl~I 
Manapr .showing the loca\ion or an u=s and !ierbaC',OUS materiat~ 1>.l11ntcd by ~ 
Coiitracior. 'The District M~ or its '1esignee will nql inspect the sites for final 
a~1D1til this sul,mittal is rcoclvcd. 

g. W"1T8J1tY of Planiejl M.ltcrial 

I. Dutiag pl&lting, the qontractor shall ri:quat an ins~n by the pjstrict M~cr l!ellT 
the end or the warranl,y period. When all pl111ts ~ iicccptable, the ContraClor will be 
DOlified ofwan-anty comP.11ance:. 

2. Qekclive work shall be com:cted within five (S) \VOiking da,s of nolificatillll by the 
Oi&trict Manager. -Upon completion or-planlina, the Contnu:lor abaU ~ from the site 
exi;:eS$ soil, planting conl&incrs and debris, mid repair any damago to &lnlotures, ecc., 
tesl!ltin~from plenling opeiatic111s. 

3. The Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that ell plants. at the time or final 
Inspection, exhibit the ~ci and q1111lifieatian reqlilred for the grade •of plenl as 
ori11inmly specified, 

$.;2.3 Observation and !n>visjoual AcceplBl:lce 

._ . - "'~---;.j·li!iii-·;..;::'ii!i.2ii!i. iil,l:r-.;;;;_,;:;_-..!i!!l!IIFlii•"'1¥!!!a. •""-~ive ·wotk-1s-compl~itliiludi1,&()i!jimgi iii _- llliii, sn ··1 A~~ --w '' l!l!i!!!!I!' -• 
or its deslgnee will make an obSCM1tioil to detcnninc acceptability. The vcgetalive work 11111y 
not be reYiewed for fuial acceptanoe in parts. 

Pa.11e 16ofl9 



-Poinciana CDD Scqie orSetvtces 
Aqua~ J'la!,t Malnlallnc:c Sepiembcr 2013 

6. 

b. W~ V'let~tive w~ docs not coxnply with the rcq~~111~. !be Contractor mall replace 
J'!:.iecled w91k and eonlinue specifie,,i mai•llll®e until re-observed by lhc District Manager or 
its desianee an!f found ID be accq,table and will continue the guaran~ perio4. The Contnic:tor 
sl!all mno.ie rejcctecl plants and ~ promptly from the project site . 

c. Al llie end of the prantee period, illspeclion of pl$nfs will be milck-1:iy the Distrid Manaacr or 
its desilllfJC UpoP wn111111 nodllc n,qucating such.iospcction, submitted by the Con~ at I~ 
three (3) days before the anlicipaied inspec:tio11. All defects diSCC>v~ s.hllll be ri!pand or 
n:placed by &he C011"8etot before final~ -

cl Upon completi!)ll qf the work, prior .to F~ Ac:cq,tance, the Conum:tor thall thoroughly dean 
the projl:d site, m additi011 to removing all !14Uit>Jl!enl, UIIIISN ~s. del_etcrious material, 
end SUll!lu~ matenal1, th~ Contractor shall comet any damaged strucwres or vegetation altered 
as a taliJt orlhe lll!dscape wort. 

AdmlplsbJtionlMalotenaace/Opvaticnuptg&ram 

The Contractor sull develop policies and procedures and implenu:nt an Administration, Operation, and 
MiintcnlDl:C Propm. 1\llt propam s\all 'inehlde, bol not be limited to, tb following: 

6.1 General 

6.1,1 Thia program •P be a comprehensive ll&ltllive 11,111!, w~ applicable, graphic/diagnan,na1ie 
lillpltllalion of pol• and ~res which a~\ &IWO"' the Cont~r•s 'Scrvicei provided 
underll\i5 ~~tic generallyO'!ltUIJCd in Ibis Su,pe of Sc:i'vicca. l'Jie.11rograill dOC11nient shall 
contain key 1iifCllli\alion !dative 10 the majanomponenlll cli:seribcd lielow-

The 'PIOlll'lffl doe11men1 ahall k presc:nied in a three-ring binder usiag standant 8½" :x 11" pages, 
i.b1g1KpllC!ld for wt~ g,aphies, lrildfor diagntms, and witll, if neecaary, 11" -x 17" paps for 
diligrmni andfor gniphic:1 that fold OIIL The doc:wni:111 shall im:luilc: as a mi1ii111um. .a fable of 
COlllents, sectioo dividers; n111Dbere&! page,, iSf1!1111CC: elate of ~ ~c. IIDCl appendices as 
n,quired. Each copy shall be nmnbffld 1111d .a log iliail be kept by the Contractor of docum11n1 
bol~ (mer 10 Seclian 2.9.3, ~ DiSJJC1811U 

6.1.2 The program documents sluil_l be kept iip-lQ-date at .all lilDI!$ by the Contractor. Revislo!lll to the 
~ ahall be indlea1ed by rootn~ on the revised pages. Revisions ~II be.diatribut~ b}' 
the Contraetor to all documllllt holders. 

6.1.2 fMContrac\or ~l pn:pa:e d,aft copies of the doc:wnent for review u.a comment l!Y the Di11ric1 
Manager witbi~ tliufy (30) calendar days of the nolice 10 pioued with ille Services, The 
C(,mractor snail anticipate at least two (2) more ~itional reviews by the District prior 10 
issuance of the lirml doc1D11enl All Distpcl Manager C!>inmenl.$ shall be UlGOlpOTatc:d into lite 
ciQcumen1. The (:oncnictor shall .be responsible for prep~ and submitting the following 
1111mbcr of copies of the program document to the District Manager. 

• Firs! Draft 
• Second Draft 
• Third.Pr-ft 
• fioal .Dooumellt 

Six (6) bo-uud~ia, one(l)1Ulboun4c,opy 
Six (6) bo1111d copia, one{l) unb®nd copy 
Six (6.)bound copies, onli(l)unboundcopy 

-- - . - •--lliiil: .... ::ei_iiliii' •·- '"-- !;;;_.,;;_,;:eil_!i!l_l!llllifi .. -~ 
~(JO) ~ -copa ~:i-!2) dl. ffic:s on..,c..,o_ .......,,iliiii_~_ 

6.1 Administration 

6.2.1 ·:rho adminisu:allve scctia.os or the program doc;U111cnt shall, at a minimum, addn!SS 11\osc 
Page 17o°fl~ 



Poinciana CDD 
AQuttic Pllllll MairitenanCII 

Scope or SorviCIIS 
Sei;lu:mber 2013 

runctiODS which ~ the ~osibiUty of' ihe ContractQJ' ma~ lO all admini_strad~ matllffli 
geiM:f81ly destribed in t1ie Soop~ ofScrvic:es and m 'oudinecl below. 

6.2.2 O~nizalioll!II ~ for adminiltnlliVfi illallagem~ filactlcms inchlde key 11$r&!!Mcl names. job 
titles, ·and phone 11umbcrs . 

. 6,2.3 Policies and procc,durcs ielatcd 10 thc-Contraelor?s program rar QC)lllmunications with •the Solivita 
community relative lo general 1118U11C111111ce opemliollS and ws!Qmer services. 

6.2.4 Policies anii pn:icedwes related 10 the coonllnaliOD and cammunicatlOAS with develojlcrs, bu.ilders 
Md others who aie a part of the eolilinuing ci-,(opmenf. and constructioa of the Solivita 
commanily. · 

6.2.S Perso.nn~I pol)~ and procedures ~ to the Contncror's pei,onnel perfonning Sen-ices on 
the Poinciana COO site. 

6.3 Operations 

6.3.1 1bc o~ons section of the prpJn!m d~ent shall, •! .• mjulmum, address 1hosc func1lons 
whleb &11: the re,sponsibUity of the Con~ mated IO all opemlotn>'oustomer service tllallet'S 
gcnct81.ly clescribeid in the Scope of Services and-. oullined below. 

6.3.2 Organizational chans for operations mid c:ustomu service ielated fanc:tions !ncJude my pa:sonnel 
~ job titles, and phopc numbers, 

63 .3 Policies and proccdW'CIJ ?dated to ~ aitullli011$ iacludlng 24-bour notification, 
crncrgcric:y phone numbers, Contractor mobllizalion and rosponso lime (refer to Section 7.2, 
Bmcrg~cy Response Pmjmn forflirtbcrdetlilt), IIQd aa fordL 

6A Maiawi111.ee 

6.4. 1 1'hc malntcnanoc ICCtion of tbe Jl1VPlll 4oc:unient shall. at • 111W111W11, addras \hose mnc:1io1111 
which ·arc lhc RSl)OlllibiUty of the Contractor related to all maintenance matters generally 
desoribed in tilt Scope of Scrvicca Bild as outlined below 

6.4.2 Contractor sljatt provide all safety ciqwpmcni required by the •ctivitics outlilled In this Scope. 
BmJiloyccs shal! be provided ~ ecpi~lil mid proper iDstnletion/ccrtliiciati011 for their wo:rk 
aasi~t1. .AJJ e4uipment, safot.y ~. and bcibicide epray apparal\lS shall be maint.aiued in 
gOQd weirldng QT'dcr. 

6.4.3 All gatc;s :mall be closed and locked if applicable afu:r acocssin,1 pond to perform mauru:noni:e 
servioes. 

The Admblistra\ion, Operation, and MBU>tCIIBuce Program shall be submi\tcd by ll}e ContJactor for ~ew 
nod approval by tht: District Manager. The Conlractor shall modify the l)l'Dgram as requiie4 by the Dislric1 
Mllllllger, 

7. Rempost Time apd Emergency bpolile Prognm 

-· ·-• ~-.ri,tli,_ tn!Ctn ·• st 'te::~~-within IM--am01illtof,M111,C.jndi~-::4ifiliJ«m11111J ... li!IWlll•!![lii!-""•~·.l"s~·-..,·Ec--"''"'"'·•i!l!i!!!i!il!II!•..,.·;-. 
lollo\ving is general f'0;${10llS11 umc information and reqlliremef!IS for the Emi:rgeacy Rapon~ P[9,gtam to be 
developed, implemented, and maln1alned by the Con'lll.ctor. 

Page l8 Ofl9 



---

Poinciana CDD 
Aq11atic Plant MllintonlJIOC! 

Ji;111ergeney R,esponse Pro1nm 

SCO!M' of"Services 
Soptcmb!:r 20\3 

The C1.1ntrac10r 'Shall develop, lmpiemein arul mainl&in JIil J3melieney Response Program (ERP) for e.mergeney 
work that must proccted immediately to avolcl pivpaty damage or result in a public lieaJlh or safety hazatd. The 
ERP aball adchas emergency situations mcluiiing, but not limited 11:1, the following itetns: 

• Fis!) Jellis 
• ~Spi1l11 . 
• Equipment Failures 
• Water Qualfay Mmiitorina R.esullS out cf compliance 

Additi01111Uy, the ERP sball lildd,- the following: 

• "Respc)M"ble parties to be notified 
• P.Clllonnel, cq11ipmcm, and emergency NJ!lir coutrectors on call and who will respond to each type of 

einetgmii:y. 
• P~ for notifying the Distriel, Di51riet.Mlmaaer, the Solivita comraun.ity, AV Homea, and Oilier 

utility companies C!f rqulatoiy agencies affected by the li$ted cmergeo.\l)'-
• The Co\ltraetor aluill p_repan:, Jl!I.Ultain. ~d dislribule au ~ manual ~Jin& lhe procedura a!l(I 

,apoosibilities for Uie .slnlat1ons Jl$(ed above Ind any other situation cl~ apprc)priatc by the PiStrict. 

The ERJ> Manual s!iall be included in the o~tions lieCdon of the Admlnislralivet'Malnlenaneo' Gperations 
Progra!ll {n:f« to $c,ction 6 Corfu~ .. 111) • 

.. . -~ :3:"P'.: 

Page l!lot19 



ExhibitB 

The following ponds, as identified on the attached map dated June 2018, are 
included within the scope of this agreement: 

A-1, A2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-6, A-7, A-8, A-9, A-IOA, A-10B, A-11, A-12, A-13, 
A-20, A-21, A-22; and 

B-1 B-5 B-6 B-11 B-15 B-16· and 
' ' ' ' ' ' 

C-1 C-2 C-3 C-6A C-6B C-8 C-9 C-10 C-11 C-12 C-13 C-14 C-15 C-16 ''' , ''' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' C-17, C-18, C-19, C-20; and 

D-1, D-2, D-3, D-4, D-5, D-6, D-7, D-8, D-9, D-10, D-11; and 

E-1, E-2, E-3, E-5, E-6, E-8, E-11, E-18, E-19, E-21, E-31; and 

F-7. 

-• - ... :.iliiL :· _£iiiij· 0--·. ·· -.-..--:.,.- cl. ,._...,. - . :li!!iiL £0J4Z: . M 



~ 
~ ----------....I CIQDClllll)PDJGA'IA1M 

MUNlawtlD,_, 

TMiliiilll ,,iii"iiiia•- w .. g .. 
i = :i :! ... 

i ii I - a 

I -==-i: = '==" .. -- = g ---==-: 

• 
SOL'ij}ITA 
POINCIANA CDD 

WETLAND & POND 
OWNERSHIP MAP 

.DE2D11 

.. , ':E.;t -a' = '==' :e, ---= 1!' 
'!' -i' '='= 
V -------.. --



SECTf·ON ·C 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN POINCIANA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AND CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO MANAGEMENT, INC. FOR THE 

PROVISION OF MIDGE CONTROL SERVICES 

This Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of the pt day of October, 
2018, by and between: 

Poinciana Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated 
in Polk County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 13 5 West Central 
Boulevard, Suite 320, Orlando, Florida 32801 (the "District''); and 

Clarke Environmental Mosquito Management, Inc., an Illinois corporation, 
whose local address is 3036 Michigan Avenue, Kissimmee, Florida 34744 (the 
"Contractor," and together with the District, the "Parties"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure 
improvements and for providing certain services, including midge control services; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain an independent contractor to provide midge 
control services within the District, as more particularly shown on the attached Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor represents that it is qualified, willing and able to provide such 
services to the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 

A. The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the Contractor are to provide the 
services, labor and materials necessary for the provision of midge control services 
within the District, as described herein and in Exhibit B, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the "Services"). 

1 



B. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District 
and in accordance with this Agreement Contractor shall use industry best practices 
and procedures when carrying out the Services. Any additional compensation for 
additional services shall be paid only as negotiated between the parties and upon the 
written authorization of the District. 

C. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to this 
Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreemen~ and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations affecting 
the provision of the Services. 

D. The Contractor shall report directly to the District's Designee who shall be the 
District Manager. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the 
District, its residents and landowners from damage and shall follow and be 
responsible for the Services set forth in Exhibit B. Contractor agrees to repair any 
damage resulting from Contractor's activities and work within twenty-four (24) 
hours. 

SECTION 3, COMPENSATION; TERM. 

A. As compensation for the completion of the Services, the District agrees to pay the 
Contractor Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Eighty Three. Dollars and Thirty-Three 
Cents ($12,583.33) per month, which amount includes all tools, labor and materials 
necessary to complete the Services. The term of this Agreement shall be from 
October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019, unless terminated earlier in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement. 

B. If the District should desire additional work or services not provided in Exhibit B, the 
Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to 1.mdertake such additional work or 
services. Upon successful negotiations, the parties shall agree in writing to a work 
order, addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement as set forth in Section 4 
herein. 

C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 
Contractor that all subcontr~ctors, materi~ men, su lier rer _),e, 9 and _ _ 

Ulre evioence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial a.ivers of Lien, to be 
submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, 
and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of 
said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition 
precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form 
satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to 
the District, bas been paid and that the Contractor bas met all of the obligations with 
regard to the withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, 
Workmen's Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar 
payroll deductions from the wages of employees. 

2 

---



D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices. 
Further, the Contractor agrees to render an invoice to the District, in writing, which 
shall be delivered or mailed to the District by the fifth (5th) day of the next 
succeeding month. This invoice is due and payable within forty-five (45) days of 
receipt by the District, or in accordance with Florida's Prompt Payment Act, 
whichever is sooner. The invoice shall include such supporting information as the 
District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 

SECTION 4. CHANGE ORDERS. Contractor understands that the Services may be 
reduced, enlarged or otherwise modified in scope. If any additional Services are proposed 
beyond those identified in this Agreement, Contractor shall perfonn them but only after 
receiving a written change order from the District Contractor shall cooperate with and assist the 
District in preparing and determining the scope of any change order. In the event the service 
represents a unit price set forth in this Agreement, Contractor's compensation shall be adjusted 
for the added or deducted services proposed by the change order in accordance with the unit 
prices established in the Agreement. In the event the service is not represented by a lump sum or 
unit price set forth in this Agreement, Contractor's compensation shall be adjusted for the added 
or deducted services proposed by the change order as reasonably determined by the District in 
conference with the Contractor. 

SECTION S. INSURANCE. Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance 
during the performance of the Services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than 
the following: 

Workers Compensation 

General Liability 
Bodily Injury (including contractual) 
Property Damage (including contractual) 

Automobile Liability (if applicable) 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage 

Pollution Liability 

statutory 

$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

-- ~...,....._l!!!l!iii!ililtil)iciae/J?eiaiaide Applicators Cc.w rage,~ - ~1&$l,iii1Jlifilj• ---------- .,....,.... 

Contractor shall provide the District with a certificate naming the District, its officers, 
agents and employees as an additional insured. At no time shall Contractor be without insurance 
in the above amounts. No policy may be canceled during the term of this Agreement without at 
least thirty (30) days written notice to the District. An insurance certificate evidencing 
compliance with this section shall be sent to the District · prior to the commencement of any 
performance under this Agreement 

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times 
the relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 

3 



indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 
and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or par1ner of the District Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, 
subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor. The parties acknowledge 
that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall hire and pay 
all of Contractor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of District and 
at all times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and control. 

In particular, District will not: i) Withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor's 
payments; ii) Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor's 
behalf; iii) Withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) Make disability 
insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) Obtain workers' compensation insurance 
on behalf of Contractor. 

SECTION 7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAws, ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS. The 
Contractor shall keep, observe, anq. perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and 
Federal laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in 
writing within five (5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a 
report of a violation or an alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental 
body or agency or subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this 
Agreement or any action of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or 
materialmen, or with respect to terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety 
appliances, or any other requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with 
any requirement of such agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, 
request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an alleged violation, the District may 
terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon the giving of notice of 
termination. 

SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at 
law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or 
specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit 
or ini __ Wt:. th_ , e Dis,trict's :right to nrotect il§-!ia .frq(i_ . ipti.C~ ence b•IJ third,_p•<>~T to ~ .-,- -, ' .. -a m • ~__.,.•"-" .r · - ----- ~ ... ~ ;,;.~_~% : 411 RV __ ..,.,..,_ __ ;;; - ·" · '!6':.•J ~-- · -- ac -il!!iiii z. • 
Agreement. 

SECTION 9. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either party is required 
to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs 
incurred, including reasonable attorney's fees, paralegal fees, expert witness fees and costs for 
trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

4 



SECTION 10. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained 
in this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
District and the Contractor. 

SECTION 11. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District 
and the Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the 
Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 
instrument. 

SECTION 12. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (''Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 

A. If to District: 

With a copy to: 

B. If to Contractor: 

Poinciana Community Development District 
135 West Central Boulevard, Suite 320 
Orlando, Florida 32301 
Attn: District Manager 

Hopping Green & Sams PA 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn: Michael C. Eckert 

Clarke Environmental Mosquito Management, Inc. 
3036 Michigan Avenue 
Kissimmee, Florida 34744 
Attn: Pete Deglomine 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. 
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recogniz.ed by the United States government shall not be 

ar- - ---~~~e!n~!~?;r~a;~ii[~~1t{;~~~\'Xfh!;=~~~:~p~!!:~h:~~~~--=- 7 
-- - - FF 

are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or 
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to 
the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

SECTION 13. ARM'S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated 
fully between the District and the Contractor as an arm, s length transaction. Both parties 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the 
case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties 

5 



are deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will 
not be interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor. 

SECTION 14. THIRD PAR1Y BENEFICIARIES, This Agreement is solely for the benefit 
of the District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, 
to or for the benefit of any third party not a fomial party to this Agreement. Nothing in this 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 
the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 

SECTION 15. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the 
other. 

SECTION 16. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida. Venue shall be in Polk County, Florida 

A. 

-- -- .·J,;;Rlili.. . .-.r· 

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION. 

Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 
agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from any 
and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, 
penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or 
otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Services to be 
performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in connection with 
this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement 
proceedings with respect thereto. Additionally, nothing in this Agreement requires 
Contractor to indemnify the District for the District's percentage of fault if the District is 
adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and Contractor 
as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District for any and all 
percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, regardless 

i\lttluw ~~-Pi~ct is ~dj~~~e4 to b~~re .. ~;[J~S§.1\181t59.f'i7M [8W t...£~Plli1M&RI twtber, __ 
· agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construcil as a waiver of the District's 
limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida StatuJes, or other statute. 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys' fees, paralegal fees 
(incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), any interest, 
expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments against the District. 

6 



SECTION 18. LIMITATIONS ON GoVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond 
any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by 
the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim 
which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of 
law. 

SECTION 19. TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement for cause by providing thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the District; 
provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any 
failure under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this 
Agreement immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. 
The District shall provide thirty (3 0) days written notice of tennination without cause. Upon any 
termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services 
rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off 
sets the District may have against the Contractor as the sole means of recovery for termination. 

SECTION 20. OWNERSfflP OF DOCUMENTS. All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, 
specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation, 
inventions.. r~ports, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pmsuant 
to this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when 
developed and shall be considered work for hire. 

SECTION 21. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. Contractor understands 
and agrees that all documents · of any kind provided to the District in connection with this 
Agreement may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all 
applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to 
Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records 
custodian for the District is George Flint ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other 
requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain 
public records required by the District to perfonn the service; 2) upon request by the Public 
Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or 
confidentiaj, ~~ 11_1pt fro_!ll public records ~ cl9sw e reg~- nts,.!t,e no :Ldisck,sed ~cept as 

onze y law tor the duration of the contract term an o owing the contract term if the 
Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) 
upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public records in 
Contractor's possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements 
for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred 
by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft 
Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

7 



IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO TIDS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS, GMS-CENTRAL 
FLORIDA, LLC, AT (407) 841-5524, GFLINT@GMSCFL.COM, 
OR 135 WEST CENTRAL BOULEVARD, SUITE 320, 
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32801. 

SECTION 22. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 

SECTION 23. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shal] constitute the final and 
complete expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

[SIONA TURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

8 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 
and year first written above. 

Attest: 

Secretary 

Witness: 

s~ 

PrintN 

Exhibit A: Map of District Ponds 
Exhibit B: Scope of Services 

POINCIANA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO 
MANAGEMENT, INC. 

Title: C •tvTe..o L 

9 



EXBIBITA 
Map of District Ponds 

. - -
=='= ----------



A. General Conditions: 

EXHIBITB 
Scope of Services 

a. Contractor shall do the following: 
i. Maintain a computer system and record keeping database; 

ii. Provide educational brochures and public relations regarding aquatic 
midges to the residents of the District, if requested by the District; 

iii. Make available an Aquatic Midge Citizen Response Hotline, which will 
be available to residents of the District; and 

iv. Provide program consulting and quality control services. 

b. Service Guarantee. Contractor shall respond to and resolve all verbal or written 
concerns from the District's Board and the District's residents concerning 
program effectiveness. 

c. Attendance at Meetines. Upon request of the District, Contractor shall attend 
regularly scheduled District meetings. 

B. Adult Aquatic Midge Management. Contractor shall perform at least forty (40) 
separate · Ultra Low Volume ("ULV") applications from October 1, 2018 through 
September 30, 2019. Each application will be an UL V application, which will utiliz.e a 
comm.unity-wide truck that will spray Anvil/Biomist or synthetic pyrethoid insecticide 
covering up to eleven (11) miles of approved street/road areas within the District, and 
will utilize an A TV to provide treatments covering up to eleven (11) miles of shoreline 
areas at least including Ponds A-9, A-lOa, A-l0b, A-11, A-12, A-13, B-1, B-15, C-2, C-
10, C-12, C-20, D-5, D-6, D-7, D-8, D-9, E-1, E-2, E-3, E-21, E-31 and F-7. Contractor 
shall be responsible for scheduling the UL V applications during the year to maximize the 
effectiveness of its aquatic midge control services. Upon request, Contractor shall also 
provide notification of community contact. weather limit monitoring and compliance, 
UL V particle size evaluation, and insecticide dosage and quality control analysis. 

C. Boat / Back pack Blower Larval Control. Boat or backpack blower treatments will 
consist of treating the ponds and/or retention areas on the property, up to one hundred 
thirty (130) acres at least including Ponds A-9, A-lOa, A-lOb, A~l 1, A-12, A-13, B-1, B-
l S,af ? ; C +O, G-~ JO, D-5. D-6, 0. , D-~ 9JilJ.; E ?ii] 3;4: 2-i-;-E 3NJd F-7. -~--
The ponds will be treated using 5% Abate pellets or Abate 4E liquid. The retention areas 
will be treated throughout the year from October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019, 
when midge larvae are present, treatment is deemed necessary by standard observation 
methods, or in response to resident concerns. Abate pellets shall be the larvicide used 
and shall be applied at a rate of eight (8) pounds per acre or Abate 4E Liquid shall be 
applied at 1.5 ounces per acre. Contractor shall be responsible for scheduling the larval 
control treatments during the year to maximize the effectiveness of its aquatic midge 
control services. 

------·-.... 



-· ·- --:-=~ 

SECTIO N VI 



SECTl"ON-C 



SECTION 1 



Fund 
General Fund 

Payroll 

Poinciana 
Community Development District 

Summar y of Check Register 

August 14, 2019 to September 11, 2019 

Date CheckNo.'s 
8/20/19 2807-2809 
8/30/19 2810-2811 
9/4/19 2812-2813 
9/9/19 2814 

9/11/19 2815-2817 

Au~ust2019 
Anthony Reed 50074 

Elizabeth Lambrides 50075 
Lita Epstein 50076 

Michael Luddy 50077 
Robert Zimbardi 50078 

Amount 
$ 24,711.03 
$ 1,127.35 
$ 51,211.97 
$ 8,466.82 
$ 126,267.17 

$ 211,784.34 

$ 84.70 
$ 184.70 
$ 184.70 
$ 184.70 
$ 184.70 

$ 823.50 

$ 212,607.84 I 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 9/11/19 PAGE 1 
*** CHECK DATES 08/14/2019 - 09/11/2019 *** POINCIANA - GENERAL FUND 

BANK A GENERAL FUND 

CHECK VEND# •••.. INVOICE •.••...• EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

8/20/19 00009 

8/20/19 00011 

8/20/19 00005 

8/30/19 00010 

8/30/19 00017 

9/04/19 00004 

9/04/19 00031 

9/09/19 00001 

8/15/19 4651 201908 320-53800-47000 
AQUATIC SERVICES AUG19 

CLARKE AQUATIC SERVICES, INC. 

8/15/19 1008362 201908 320-53800-47100 
MOSQUITO MGMT SERV AUG19 

CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO 

7/29/19 LH343046 201907 310-51300-48000 
NOT.PUB.HEAR.FY19/20 BDGT 

8/05/19 LH343046 201908 310-51300-48000 
NOT.PUB.HEAR.FY19/20 BDGT 

THE LEDGER 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

8/20/19 6-713-12 201908 310-51300-42000 
DELIVERY 08/15/19 

FEDEX 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

8/26/19 2141784 201907 310-51300-31100 
INTERIM ENG. SERVS JUL19 

8/26/19 2141784A 201908 310-51300-31100 
INTERIM ENG. SERVS AUG19 

GAI CONSULTANTS, INC 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

9/01/19 4210 201909 320-53800-46200 
LAWN MAINTENANCE SEP19 

FLORALAWN 2, LLC 

7/02/19 19-0686 201906 320-53800-48300 
MOB/FILL/PUMP/SOD/SKIMMER 

ALL TERRAIN TRACTOR SERVICE, INC. 

9/01/1962 201909 310-51300-34000 
MANAGEMENT FEES-SEP19 

9/01/1962 201909 310-51300-35200 
INFORMATION TECH-SEP19 

9/01/1962 201909 310-51300-31300 
DISSEMINATION FEE-SEP19 

9/01/1962 201909 310-51300-51000 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

9/01/1962 201909 310-51300-42000 
POSTAGE 

9/01/1962 201909 310-51300-42500 
COPIES 

9/01/1963 201909 320-53800-12000 
FIELD MANAGEMENT-SEP19 

POIN POIN CDD TVISCARRA 

STATUS 

* 

* 

* 
* 

* 

* 
* 

* 

* 

* 
* 

* 

* 
* 
* 

* 

AMOUNT ••.. CHECK ••••• 
AMOUNT # 

8,616.66 

8,616.66 002807 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

12,583.33 

12,583.33 002808 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

1,755.52 

1,755.52 

3,511.04 002809 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

242.35 

242.35 002810 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

295.00 

590.00 

11,970.42 

39,241.55 

3,750.00 

125.00 

416.67 

21.59 

49.47 

211. 05 

833.33 

885.00 002811 

11,970.42 002812 

39,241.55 002813 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 9/11/19 PAGE 2 
*** CHECK DATES 08/14/2019 - 09/11/2019 *** POINCIANA - GENERAL FUND 

BANK A GENERAL FUND 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE •....•.• EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME STATUS 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

9/01/1963 201909 310-51300-42000 
MAIL NOTICES 

9/01/1963 201909 310-51300-42500 
ENVELOPE/LETTER/MAIL 

9/01/1963 201909 310-51300-51000 
ENVELOPE/LETTER/MAIL 

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES-CF 

9/11/19 00003 6/26/18 22930 201806 300-13100-10000 
FAC.AQUIC.ASSESS.METHOD. 

FISHKIND & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

9/11/19 00002 9/17/18 102653 201808 300-13100-10000 
PROJ. CONSTRUCTION SEP18 

9/17/18 102654 201808 300-13100-10000 
SALES-REC.FACIL.SEP18 

10/25/18 103488 201809 300-13100-10000 
PROJECT CONSTRUCTION SEPT 

10/25/18 103489 201809 300-13100-10000 
SALE-REC.FACILITIES SEPT. 

11/27/18 103894 201810 300-13100-10000 
SALE-REC.FACILITIES OCT18 

12/21/18 104460 201811 300-13100-10000 
PROJ. CONSTRUCTION NOV18 

12/21/18 104461 201811 300-13100-10000 
SALE-REC.FACILITIES NOV18 

1/22/19 105068 201812 300-13100-10000 
SALE-REC.FACILITIES DEC18 

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS 

9/11/19 00027 11/16/18 83257 201810 300-13100-10000 
ACQUIS. AV HOMES/TAYLOR M 

12/14/18 83592 201811 310-51300-31500 
RESEARCH/REV.AGNDA/MTG 

1/09/19 83838 201812 300-13100-10000 
ACQUIS. AV HOMES/TAYLOR M 

LATHAM, SHUKER, EDEN & BEAUDINE 

POIN POIN COD 

TOTAL FOR BANK A 

TOTAL FOR REGISTER 

TVISCARRA 

* 
* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 
* 

* 
* 

* 
* 

* 

* 

* 

AMOUNT •... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

366.67 

1,346.52 

1,346.52 

8,466.82 002814 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

22,500.00 

22,500.00 002815 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

4,911.00 

27,634.65 

1,262.50 

23,011.98 

33,157.80 

62.00 

3,375.15 

5,174.00 

98,589.08 002816 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

2,066.85 

1,902.00 

1,209.24 

211,784.34 

211,784.34 

5,178.09 002817 



. . 

SECTIO N 2 · 



• • • • • • • 

Poinciana 
Community Development District 

Unaudited Financial Reporting 
August 31, 2019 

• • 

• • • • 



Table of Contents 

1 Balance Sheet 

2 General Fund Income Statement 

3 Debt Service Income Statement 

4 Month to Month 

5 FY19 Assessment Receipt Schedule 



ASSETS: 

~ 
OPERATING ACCOUNT - SUNTRUST 

MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT 

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT 

INVESTMENTS 

SERIES 2012A-1 & A-2 

RESERVE A-1 

RESERVE A-2 

REVENUE 

GENERAL REDEMPTION 

REDEMPTION A-1 

REDEMPTION A-2 

DUE FROM DEVELOPER 

DUE FROM DEBT SERVICE 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

DUE TO GENERAL FUND 

FUND EQUITY: 
FUND BALANCES: 

Poinciana 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

BALANCE SHEET 
August 31, 2019 

General Debt Service 

Fund Fund 

$387,891 

$52,786 

$109,814 

$535,748 

$322,618 

$705,039 

$16,737 

$663 

$2,848 
$159,084 

$1,486 

$711,060 $1,583,652 

$208,962 

$1,486 

RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE 2012A-1 & A-2 $1,582,166 

OPERATING RESERVE $155,224 

UNASSIGNED $346,874 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY $711,060 $1,583,652 

I I 
Totals 
2019 

$387,891 

$52,786 

$109,814 

$535,748 

$322,618 

$705,039 

$16,737 

$663 

$2,848 

$159,084 

$1,486 

$2,294,713 

$208,962 

$1,486 

$1,582,166 

$155,224 

$346,874 

$2,294,713 



Poinciana 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND 

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

For The Period Ending August 31, 2019 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 

BUDGET THRU 8/31/19 THRU 8/31/19 VARIANCE 
REVENUES: 

ASSESSMENTS - TAX COLLECTOR $465,755 $465,755 $476,005 $10,251 

ASSESSMENTS - OIRECT BILLED $58,281 $58,281 $58,281 $0 
ASSESSMENTS - DEVELOPER $96,604 $96,604 $96,604 $0 
INTEREST $3,500 $3,208 $2,927 ($281) 

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME $0 $0 $100 $100 

TOTAL REVENUES $624,140 $623,848 $633,918 $10,069 

EXPENDITURES: 

ADMINISTRATIVE: 

SUPERVISOR FEES $12,000 $11,000 $7,400 $3,600 
FICA EXPENSE $918 $842 $566 $275 

ENGINEERING $18,000 $16,500 $10,967 $5,533 

ATTORNEY $30,000 $27,500 $31,519 ($4,019) 

ARBITRAGE $450 $0 $0 $0 

DISSEMINATION $5,000 $4,583 $4,733 ($150) 

ANNUAL AUDIT $3,590 $3,590 $3,590 $0 

TRUSTEE FEES $7,000 $7,000 $7,020 ($20) 

ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION $5,000 $5,000 $S,OOO $0 

MANAGEMENT FEES $45,000 $41,250 $41,250 $0 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY $1,500 $1,375 $3,875 ($2,500) 

TELEPHONE $100 $92 $50 $42 

POSTAGE $2,400 $2,200 $2,410 ($210) 

PRINTING & BINDING $2,700 $2,475 $734 $1,741 

INSURANCE $15,447 $15,447 $13,811 $1,636 

LEGAL ADVERTISING $3,500 $3,208 $5,882 ($2,673) 

OTHER CURRENT CHARGES $100 $92 $444 ($352) 

OFFICE SUPPLIES $300 $275 $473 ($198) 

PROPERTY APPRAISER $9,628 $9,628 $6,274 $3,354 

DUES, LICENSES & SUBSCRIPTIONS $175 $175 $175 $0 

FIELD: 

FIELD MANAGEMENT $10,000 $9,167 $9,167 $0 

ELECTRIC $2,000 $1,833 $1,11S $719 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE $143,645 $131,675 $131,675 ($0) 

AQUATIC CONTROL MAINTENANCE $98,000 $89,833 $94,783 ($4,950) 

AQUATIC MIDGE MANAGEMENT $172,800 $158,400 $138,417 $19,983 

R&M DRAINAGE $3,000 $2,750 $0 $2,750 

R&M MULCH $4,500 $4,125 $0 $4,125 

R&M PLANT REPLACEMENT $4,060 $3,721 $1,400 $2,321 

STORM STRUCTURES REPAIRS $50,000 $45,833 $57,736 ($11,903) 

CONTINGENCY $10,000 $9,167 $199 $8,968 

CAPITAL OUTLAY $20,000 $18,333 $5,885 $12,448 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $680,813 $627,069 $586,548 $40,521 

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) ($56,673) $47,370 

FUND BALANCE· BEGINNING $56,673 $454,729 

FUND BALANCE-ENDING $0 $502,098 

2 



Poinciana 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SERIES 2012A-1 & A-2 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

For The Period Ending August 31, 2019 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 

BUDGET THRU 8/31/19 THRU 8/31/19 VARIANCE 
REVENUES: 

ASSESSMENTS-TAX COLLECTOR $1,404,442 $1,404,442 $1,430,481 $26,039 

ASSESSMENTS-DIRECT BILLED $313,990 $313,990 $313,990 $0 

ASSESSMENTS -PREPAYMENT $0 $0 $18,314 $18,314 

INTEREST $0 $0 $5,192 $5,192 

TOTAL REVENUES $1,718,432 $1,718,432 $1,767,977 $49,545 

EXPENDITURES: 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

PROPERTY APPRAISER $28,380 $28,380 $14,495 $13,885 

SERI ES 2012A-1 

SPEOALCALL· 11/1 $0 $0 $S,000 ($S,000) 

INTEREST· 11/1 $209,850 $209,850 $209,850 $0 

PRINCIPAL-05/1 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $0 

INTEREST-05/1 $209,850 $209,850 $209,753 $97 

SPECIAL CALL· 05/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000) 

SERIES 2012A·2 

INTEREST -11/1 $160,425 $160,425 $160,419 $6 

PRINCIPAL· 05/1 $285,000 $285,000 $285,000 $0 

INTEREST - 05/1 $160,425 $160,425 $160,419 $6 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,653,930 $1,653,930 $1,649,936 $3,994 

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $64,502 $118,041 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING $612,054 $1,464,125 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $676,556 $1,582,166 

3 



Poinciana 
Community Development District 

-
Oct Nov Dec J•n Feb Ma, ... May Jun Jul A~ ______!__eQI_ Total 

REVENUE$· 

ASSESSMENTS· TAX COLLECTOR $0 Sl!6.967 $325,669 $21,628 $12,428 $5,S38 $14,407 $5,764 $3,593 $12 $0 $0 $476,005 

ASSESSMENTS - DIRECT BIUEO $0 $58,281 $0 $0 $0 $0 so so so $0 $0 so $58,281 
ASSESSMENTS · DEVELOPER so $96,604 $0 $0 $0 so so $0 so $0 $0 so $96,604 
INTEREST $192 $263 $334 $362 $265 $266 $264 $257 $248 $243 $231 $0 $2,927 

MISCEUANEOUS INCOME $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100 

TOTAL REVENUES I 5'-'2 S242,116 1326,003 521,990 512,693 S'i,804 Sl4 ,"f71 56,022 $3,841 5255 $231 ~ S633,918 1 

EXPENDQURES; 

ADMINJSTRATIVE· 
SUPERVISOR FEES $0 $200 $1,200 $800 $0 $1,600 $1,000 $600 $1,000 $0 $1,000 $0 $7,400 

FICA EXPENSE $0 $15 $92 $61 $0 $122 $77 $46 $77 $0 $77 $0 $566 

ENGINEERING $148 $590 $1,180 $590 $468 $1,180 $1,698 $1,328 $2,311 sass $590 $0 $10,967 

ATTORNEY $454 $11,867 $4,860 $3,249 $601 $2,043 $3,051 $2,751 $2,556 SS9 $0 $0 $31,'19 

ARBITRAGE $0 so $0 $0 $0 so $0 $0 so $0 $0 $0 $0 

DISSEMINATION $467 $417 $417 $417 $417 $517 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $0 $4,733 

ANNUAL AUDIT $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 so $3,590 $0 $0 $0 $3,590 

TRUSTEE FEES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,020 so $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,020 

ASSESSMt:NT ADMINISTRATION $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

MANAGEMENT FEES $3,7SO $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,7SO $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $0 541,250 

INFORMATION T£OINOLOGY $125 $125 $125 $2,625 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $0 $3,875 

TELfPHONE $0 $13 $5 $0 $5 $0 $0 $10 $0 $17 $0 $0 $50 

POSTAGE $98 $537 $183 $251 $25 $218 $264 $266 $255 $14 $299 so $2,410 

PRINTING & 81NOfNG $135 $11 $101 $73 $154 $0 $73 $4l $88 $56 $1 so $734 

lNSURANQ: $13,811 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,811 

LEGAL ADVERTISING $0 $347 $267 $267 $0 $267 $417 $267 $267 $2,027 $1,756 $0 $5,882 

OTHER aJRRENT OIARGES $0 $0 $36 $167 $45 $45 $74 $39 $39 so $0 $0 $444 

OFFICE SUPPLIES $1 $0 $18 $18 S88 $29 $0 $278 S21 $20 $0 $0 $473 

PROPERTY APPRAISER $0 $0 so $0 $0 $0 $0 so $0 so $6,274 $0 $6,274 

DUES, LICENSES & SUBSCRIPTIONS $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 so $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175 

FIElD: 

FIELD MANAGEMENT S833 $833 $833 $833 $833 $833 $833 $833 $833 $833 $833 $0 $9,167 

ELECTRIC $86 S91 $94 $90 $101 $116 $114 $110 $105 $106 $103 $0 $1,115 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 $11,970 so $131,675 

AQ.UATtcCONTitOLMAINTENANCE $8.617 Sl!,617 Sl!,617 Sl!,617 Sl!,617 $8.617 $8.617 S8,617 Sl!,617 $8,617 Sl!,617 $0 $94,783 

AQUATIC MIDGE MANAGEMENT $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 $12,583 Sl2,583 $0 $138,417 

R&M DRAINAGE $0 so $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 so $0 

R&MMULOi $0 so $0 $0 $0 $0 so $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

R&M PLANT REPLACEMENT $0 $350 $0 $0 $1,050 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,400 

STORM STRUCfURES REPAIRS $0 $0 $0 so $559 $0 $0 $0 $39,242 $17,936 $0 $0 $57,736 

CONTINGENCY $0 $0 so so $0 $199 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $199 

CAPITAL OUTlAV $5,857 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,885 

TOTAL EXPENDlTURES I $64,109 $52,316 $46,331 $46,363 $41,391 $44,214 $52,082 $44,059 $87,845 $59,445 $48,395 $0 $586,548 1 

EXCESS AEVENUES/(EXl'ENOITURESI I LS6J,!117l $189,800 $279,672 ($24,373) ($28,6981 ($38,'10! ($37,311) ($38.037) 1Sl!4,D04! !$59,1901 ($48,164) $0 $47,370 1 

4 



CHECK 
DATE NO 

11/14/18 ACH 
11/20/18 ACH 
11/23/18 ACH 
11/30/18 ACH 
12/11/18 ACH 
12/28/18 ACH 
1/15/19 ACH 
1/31/19 ACH 
2/15/19 ACH 
3 / 15/19 ACH 
4 /15/19 ACH 
4/26/19 ACH 
5/15/19 ACH 
6/17/19 ACH 
6/19/19 ACH 
7 /25/19 ACH 

TOTAL COLLECTED 

Poinciana 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FY2019 RECEIPTS 

MAINTENANCE 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS $ 
CERTIFIED NET ASSESSMENTS $ 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET ASSESSMENTS 
RECEIVED DISCOUNTS PAID INCOME RECEIVED 

I 

$ 907.08 $ 36 .30 $ 17 .42 $ - s 853.36 s 
$ 9,115 .52 $ 453 .33 $ 173 .24 $ - $ 8,488.95 s 
$ 11,187 .32 $ 447.70 $ 214 .79 s - $ 10 ,524 .83 s 
$ 71,319 .96 $ 2 850 .71 $ 1,369.39 $ - s 67 ,099 .86 $ 
$ 120 ,567 .10 $ 4,823.00 $ 2,314.88 $ - $ 113,429.22 $ 
$ 225 ,586.96 $ 9 015 .68 $ 4,331.43 $ - $ 212 239.85 $ 
$ 22,149 .60 $ 664 .65 $ 429.70 $ - $ 21 ,055.25 $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 572 .77 $ 572.77 $ 
$ 12,932 .53 s 250 .66 $ 253 .64 $ - $ 12 .4 28.23 $ 
$ 5,708 .15 $ 57 .38 $ 113 .02 $ - s 5 537.75 $ 
$ 14,667.58 $ - $ 293 .35 $ - $ 14 374 .23 $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 32.46 s 32.46 $ 
$ 5,825 .94 s 17.52 $ 44.01 $ - s 5 764.41 $ 
$ 1,363.06 $ - $ 27.26 $ - $ 1,335.80 $ 
s 2 ,30 2 .82 $ - $ 46.06 $ - $ 2 ,256.76 $ 
s - $ - $ - s 11.76 $ 11.76 s 
s - s - s - s - $ - s 

s 50 3,633 .62 $ 18,616.93 $ 9,62 8 .19 $ 616. 99 s 476 ,00 5.49 $ 

499,824.26 
469,834.80 

100% 
GENERAL 

FUND 

853 .36 
8 ,488 .95 

10 ,524 .83 
67,099 .86 

113,429.22 
212,239.85 

21,055.25 
572 .77 

12 ,428 .23 
5 ,537 .75 

14,374 .23 
32 .46 

5 764.41 
1,335.80 
2,256. 76 

11 .76 
-

4 76,0 05 .49 

PERCENTAGE COLLECTED 101% 

CHECK GROSS ASSESSMENTS 
DATE NO RECEIVED 

i I 
11/14/18 ACH $ 3,004 .74 $ 
11/20/18 ACH $ 26,524 .56 s 
11/23/18 ACH $ 33 , 113 .75 s 
11/30/18 ACH s 203,421.54 s 
12 /11/18 ACH $ 360,736 .57 $ 

12/28/18 ACH $ 710,820 .68 s 
1/15/19 ACH $ 64,926 .57 $ 
1/31/19 ACH $ - $ 
2/15/19 ACH $ 38 417 .01 s 
3/15/19 ACH $ 16,478 .00 s 
4 / 15/19 ACH $ 43 ,735 .38 $ 
4/26/19 ACH $ - s 
5/15/19 ACH $ 2,206 .56 s 
6/17/19 ACH $ 3,949 .40 $ 
6/19/19 ACH s 7,065 .95 s 
7/25/19 ACH $ - $ 

s - $ 

TOTAL COLLECTED s 1,514,4 00 ,7 1 $ 
PERCENTAGE COLLECTED 

TAYLOR MORRISON 

DATE DUE 
RECEIVED DATE 
11/2 /18 12/1/18 
11/2/18 2/1/19 
11/2/18 S/1/19 

DEBT SERVICE 

COMMISSIONS 
DISCOUNTS PAID 

120 .18 $ 57 .69 $ 
1,320 .07 $ 504.09 s 
1,324 .44 $ 635 .79 $ 
8,126 .15 s 3,905 .91 s 

14,422 .53 $ 6 926 .28 $ 
28,387.97 $ 13,648 .65 $ 

1 946.56 $ 1,259.60 $ 
- $ - $ 

745.98 $ 753 .42 $ 
165 .84 $ 326.24 $ 

- s 874 .71 $ 
- $ - $ 

6 .05 $ 116.17 $ 
- $ 78.99 $ 

- $ 141.32 $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - s 

56,56 5.77 $ 29,2 28.8 6 $ 

GROSS ASSESSMENTS $ 
CERTIFIED NET ASSESSMENTS $ 

INTEREST NET ASSESSMENTS 
INCOME RECEIVED 

- $ 2,826.87 $ 
- s 24 ,700.40 s 
- s 31 ,153 .52 $ 

- $ 191 389 .48 $ 
- $ 339 ,387 .76 s 
- $ 668,784.06 s 
- $ 61 ,720.41 s 

1,744.76 $ 1,744.76 $ 
- $ 36 ,917.61 $ 
- $ 15,985 .92 $ 
- $ 42 860 .67 s 

96 . 10 $ 96 .10 s 
- s 2,084 .34 s 
- s 3 870.41 s 
- $ 6,924.63 $ 

34.17 $ 34.17 $ 
- 5 - $ 

l 87S.Ol $ 1,43 0,481 .11 $ 

DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS 

$372,271.37 $58,281.12 

CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL 
NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 

5823 4 $ 186,135 .69 $ 186,135 .69 s 29,140 .56 $ 
58234 $ 93,067.84 s 93,067.84 s 14,570.28 $ 
58234 s 93,067.84 $ 93,067.84 $ 14,570.28 s 

$ 372,271.37 $ 372,271.37 $ 58,281.12 $ 

5 

1,517,469.41 
1,426,421 .25 
100% 

DEBT SERVICE 
FUND 

2,826.87 
24 ,700.40 
31 , 153 .52 

191,389 .48 
339,387.76 
668,784.06 

6 1. 720.41 
1,744.76 

36,917.61 
15,985.92 
42 860 .67 

96 .10 
2,084 .34 
3,870.41 
6,924.63 

34.17 
-

1,4 30,4 81 .11 
100% 

$313,990.25 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

156,995 . 13 
78,497.56 
78 497.56 

313,990.25 



SECTIO N D 



SECTIO N 1 



---. r ·. - -- - - . -

I L . 
I 

Poinciana 
Community Development District 

Poinciana CDD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 



Poinciana 

Community Development District 

Field Mana gement Report 

September 18, 2019 

To: George Flint 

District Manager 

From: Clayton Smith 

Field Services Manager 

RE: Poinciana COD - September 18, 2019 

The following is a summary of items related to the field operations and management of the Poinciana 
Community Development District. 

Poinciana CDD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 



~ Dredgesox have been 
placed around the banks 
of pond E-31 and the 
section of D-2 

• Contractor to proceed with 
filling of dredgesox. 

Poinciana CDD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 

Once dredgesox are 
stable sod will be added. 
Due to hurricane delays 
the contractor anticipates 
completion by September 
2Qth_ 



On-going pond site-review 
~ Inventorying and 

documenting any possible 
priority repairs for next 
budget year. 
Working with Engineer to 
determine priority and 
importance of items. 

Poinciana CDD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 

Monitoring, repairs and 
maintenance of pond 
structures and banks is 
ongoing. 



Additional action items 
regarding pond D-2, E-31, 

1 Pond bank restoration 
company to restore all of 
E-31 and necessary parts 
of D-2. 

,b Work to begin September 
2 and end September 11. 

Poinciana COD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 

i.i.. Planted beds with palm 
trees are having specified 
no longer needed 
supports removed. 
Working with landscaper 
to clean up and re
establish some bed 
edges . 



• Continue to monitor 
tunnels for a need to 
pressure wash/clean 
them. 

~ Tunnels could use 
pressure washing some 
time during beginning of 
FY 2020. 

• Poinciana COD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 

L Repair washout behind 
mitered end sections. 
Most economical 
approach to be taken. 
Breaking up MES and 
replacing with rip-rap or 
pond bank restoration. 

1. Next fiscal year due to 
budget. 



'A 

Poinciana CDD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 

General Maintenance 
performed 

A. Cleaning of panels and 
inspection. 
Compressor Warrantied. 



For any questions or comments regarding the above information, please contact me by phone at 
407-201-1514, or by email at csmith @gmscfl.com Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

Clayton Smith 

: Poinciana CDD Field Management Report I GMS 2019 



Clarke Monthly Treatment Report September 2014 

C PCDD Monthly Treatment Report 

Date between : 8/1/2019 and 8/31/2019 

Customer Site ID Treatment Date Condit! on/Weeds Treated 
10-A 8/7/2019 Alligator Weed 

10-A 8/7/2019 Pennywort 

10-A 8/7/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

10-B 8/7/2019 Alligator Weed 

10-B 87/2019 Pennvwort 
10-B 8/7/19 Shoreline Grasses 
A-1 8/ 14/ 2019 Alli 2ator Weed 
A-1 8/ 14/ 2019 Pennvwort 
A-1 8/ 14/ 2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-11 8/7/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-11 8/7/2019 Pennywort 

A-11 8/7/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-12 8/7 12019 Alli Rator Weed 
A-12 8/ 7 12019 Crested FloatinR Heart 
A-12 8 7 12019 Pennvwort 
A-12 8 '7 12019 Shoreline Grasses 
A-13 8 '7. 12019 Alli Rator Weed 
A-13 8'7i 2019 Crested Floating Heart 
A-13 8'7 / 2019 Pennvwort 
A-13 8/7/ 2019 Shoreline Grasses 
A-2 8/14/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-2 8/14/2019 Pennywort 

A-2 8/14/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-20 8/14/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-20 8/14/2019 Pennywort 

A-20 8/14/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-21 8/14/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-21 8/14/2019 Pennywort 

A-21 8/14/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-22 8/14/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-22 8/14/2019 Pennywort 

A-22 8/14/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-3 8/7/2019 Clean 

A-4 8/7/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-4 8/7/2019 Pennywort 

A-4 8/7/2019 Saivinia 

A-4 8/7/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-5 8/7/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-5 8/7/2019 Pennywort 

A-5 8/7/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

A-6 8/7/2019 Clean 

A-7 8/7/19 Clean 

A-8 8/7/19 Clean 

A-9 8/7/2019 Alligator Weed 

A-9 8/7/2019 Pennywort 

A-9 8/7/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

B-1 8/14/2019 Alligator Weed 

B-1 8/14/2019 Cattail 

B-1 8/14/2019 Pennywort 

B-1 8/14/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

B-11 8/26/2019 Clean 

B-15 8/7/2019 Alligator Weed 

B-15 8/7/2019 Pennywort 

B-15 8/7/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

B-16 8/7/2019 Clean 

B-6 8/26/2019 Duckweed 

B-6 8/26/2019 Filamentous 

C-1 8/28/2019 Clean 

1 



Clarke Monthly Treatment Report September 2014 

C-10 8/22/2019 Filamentous 

C-10 8/22/2019 Hydrilla 

C-11 8/26/2019 · Alligator Weed 

C-11 8/26/2019 Pennywort 

C-11 8/26/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

C-12 8/5/2019 Filamentous 
C-12 8/5/2019 Hydrllla 

C-13 8/8/2019 Alligator Weed 

C-13 8/8/2019 Pennywort 

C-13 8/8/2019 Shoreline Grasses 
C-14 8/8/2019 Alligator Weed 

C-14 8/8/2019 Pennywort 

C-14 8/8/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

C-15 8/28/2019 Clean 

C-16 8/8/2019 Clean 

C-17 8/26/2019 Alligator Weed 
C-17 8/26/2019 Pennywort 

C-17 8/26/2019 Shorel ine Grasses 
C-18 8/15/2019 Alligator Weed 

C-18 8/15/2019 Pennywort 

C-18 8/15/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

C-19 8/28/2019 Filamentous 

C-19 8/28/2019 Spike Rush 

C-2 8/26/2019 Clean 

C-20 8/28/2019 Alligator Weed 

C-20 8/28/2019 Pennywort 

C-20 8/28/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

C-3 8/28/2019 Clean 

C-6 8/28/2019 Clean 

C-6B 8/28/2019 Clean 
C-8 8/26/2019 Clean 

C-9 8/26/2019 Clean 
D-1 8/8/2019 Clean 

D-10 8/8/2019 Alligator Weed 
D-10 8/8/2019 Pennywort 

D-10 8/8/2019 Shoreline Grasses 
D-11 8/8/2019 Alligator Weed 

D-11 8/8/2019 Pennywort 
D-11 8/8/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

D-2 8/8/2019 Clean 
D-3 8/8/2019 Clean 

D-4 8/8/2019 Alligator Weed 

D-4 8/8/2019 Pennywort 

D-4 8/8/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

D-5 8/15/2019 Alligator Weed 

D-5 8/15/2019 Pennywort 
D-5 8/15/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

D-6 8/15/2019 Alligator Weed 

D-6 8/15/2019 Pennywort 

D-6 8/15/2019 Shoreline Grasses 
D-7 8/15/2019 Alligator Weed 
D-7 8/15/2019 Pennywort 
D-7 8/15/2019 Shoreline Grasses 
D-8 8/15/2019 Alligator Weed 
D-8 8/15/2019 Pennywort 
D-8 8/15/2019 Shoreline Grasses 
D-9 8/15/2019 Alligator Weed 

D-9 8/15/2019 Pennywort 
D-9 8/15/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-1 8/12/2019 Alligator Weed 
E-1 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

2 



Clarke Monthly Treatment Report September 2014 

E-1 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-11 8/14/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-11 8/14/2019 Pennywort 

E-11 8/14/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-18 8/12/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-18 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

E-18 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-19 8/12/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-19 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

E-19 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-2 8/12/2019 All igator Weed 

E-2 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

E-2 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-21 8/12/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-21 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

E-21 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-3 8/12/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-3 8/12/2019 Cattail 

E-3 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

E-3 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-31 8/12/2019 Clean 

E-5 8/12/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-5 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

E-S 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-6 8/12/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-6 8/12/2019 Pennywort 

E-6 8/12/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

E-8 8/14/2019 Alligator Weed 

E-8 8/14/2019 Pennywort 

E-8 8/14/2019 Shoreline Grasses 

F-7 8/26/2019 Clean 

POND 8-5 8/26/2019 Duckweed 

POND 8-5 8/26/2019 Filamentous 

3 



- c ar<e 
Customer Route Start Date 

PCDD TRUCK ULV Venezia 7/1/19 
PCDDTRUCK ULV Bella Viana 7/1/19 
PCOO TRUCK ULV Laoo Vista 7/1/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Monte Lena 7/1/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Ra in bow Lakes 711119 
PCOD TRUCK ULV Terra/Flora Vista 7/1119 

PCDD TRUCK ULV Capri 7/1/19 

PCOO TRUCK ULV Portofino 711119 
PCDDATV ULV ATV-all ponds 7/3/19 
PCDDTRUCK ULV Venezia 718/19 
PCDDTRUCK ULV Bella Viana 7/8/19 
PCDDTRUCK ULV Lano Vista 7/8/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Monte Lena 7/8/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Rainbow Lakes 7/8/19 
PCDD TRUCK UL V Terra/Flora Vista 7/8/19 

PCDD TRUCK ULV Capri 7/8/19 

PCDDTRUCKULV Portofino 7/8/19 
PCDDATVULV ATV-all oonds 7/11/19 

PCDD TRUCK ULV Venez ia 7/15/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Bella Viana 7/15/19 
PCOD TRUCK ULV Laao Vista 7115/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Monte Lena 7/15/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Rainbow Lakes 7115/19 

PCDDTRUCKULV Terra/Flora Vista 7115/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Capri 7/15/19 
PCOD TRUCK ULV Prorti!lno 7/15/19 
PCDD ATVULV ATV-all oonds 7/18/19 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Venezia 7122/19 
PCDDTRUCKULV Bella Viana (/u:11',J 
PCDD TRUCK ULV Laao Vista 7/22/19 

PCOO TRUCK ULV Monte Lena 7/22/19 

PCOOTRUCKULV Rainbow Lakes 7122/19 

PCOOTRUCK ULV Terra/Flora Vista 7/22/19 

PCODTRUCK ULV Capri 7/22119 

PCDO TRUCK ULV Portofino 7/22/19 

PCDDATVULV ATV-all ponds 7125/19 
Total For The Month 

Abate 5% Pellets Larvlclde Pon.els Start Date 
NONE FOR JULY 

Total For The M nth 

Abate 4E Larviclde Ponds Sta rt Date 
B1, F7, E3 , C10 8/22/19 

Total For The Month 

1/2 

PCDD Monthly Midge Treatment Report 
July 2019 

End Date Used Quant itv Unit of Measure 
7/1/19 2.5 mi 
711/19 2 mi 
711119 0.4 mi 
7/1/19 0 .7 mi 
711119 0 .5 mi 
7/1/19 2 .6 mi 

7/1/19 0 .8 mi 

711119 1.2 mi 

7/3/19 9.1 mi 
7/8/19 2.5 mi 
7/8/19 2 mi 
7/8/19 0.4 mi 
7/8/19 0.7 mi 
7/8/19 0.5 mi 
7/8/19 2.6 mi 

7/8/19 0.7 mi 

7/8/19 1.2 mi 
7/11/19 7.1 mi 
7/15/19 2.5 mi 
7/15/19 2 mi 
7/15/19 0.4 mi 
7/15/19 0.7 mi 
7/15119 0.4 mi 

7/15/19 3.5 mi 
7/15/19 0.8 mi 
7/15/19 1.2 mi 
7/18/19 9.9 mi 
7/22/19 2.3 mi 

''"' 1',J 2 ml 
7/22/19 0.4 mi 

7/22/19 0.7 mi 

7/22/19 0.4 ml 

7/22/19 2.6 mi 

7/22119 0.8 ml 

7/22/19 1.2 mi 

7/25/19 9.7 ml 
79 .00 mi 

End Date Used Quan ti Unit of Measure 

00 ac 

End Date Used Quantl Unit of Measure 
8122119 27 .38 ac 

27.38 

Chemical Used Quanti tv Unit of Measure 
0 .56 gal 
0 .44 gal 
0 .08 gal 
0 .16 gal 
0 .11 gal 
0.58 gal 

0.17 gal 

0 .26 gal 

1.42 oal 
0 .56 gal 
0.44 oal 
0 .08 gal 
0.16 gal 
0 .11 oal 
0.58 gal 

0.17 gal 

0 .27 ca l 
1.12 ga l 
0 .55 gal 
0.45 gal 
0 .08 gal 
0.16 oal 
0 .11 gal 

0 .59 cal 
0 .17 gal 
0 .27 gal 
1.46 cal 
0 .51 gal 
U.4 1 gal 
0 .08 cal 

0 .16 gal 
0 .11 gal 

0 .58 gal 

0 .17 gal 

0 .27 gal 

1.45 cal 
14 .85 gal 

Chem ica l Used Quanti Unit of Measu re 

0.00 lb 

Chem ica l Used Quanti Unit of Measure 
41 oz 

41.00 oz 

8/6/2014 4 :10:07 PM 



A 

C\Qfl<8 
Poinciana Community Development District 

Monthly Midge Treatment Report 
August 1, 2019-August 30, 2019 

Night Truck Spray 

• 42.0 Miles were sprayed 

ATV ULV Spray 

• 47.20 Miles were sprayed 

Backpack Pellet Larvicide 

• _Q_ Acres were treated 

Boat Larvicide Treatments 

• 27.38 Acres were treated 



. . 

SECTIO N 2 -



Customer Complaint Log Poinciana COD 

Resident Address Pond Contact Come_laint Assigned To Resolution Date Resolved 
Linda Simko 561 Grand Canal Drive A-1213 330-281-3929 Algae/Midge Control Clayton Smith Sprayed 8/15/19 
Andrew Regalmunto 513 Montage Lane C-19 630-470-1110 Algae on pond Clayton Smith Sprayed 8/15/19 
Didn't want to give Avatar pond, info 
name 532 Milano Road B-6 941-447-4333 Algae on pond N/A passed along 8/16/19 
Robinson Morales 113 Amalfi Lane E-3 retdetrobinson @gmail.com Midge Control Clayton Smith Sprayed 9/11/19 
Andrew Regalmunto 513 Montage Lane C-19 630-470-1110 Algae on pond Clayton Smith Sprayed 9/9/19 
Diana Rodriguez 741 Grand Canal Drive A-1213 407-785-5722 Midge Control Clayton Smith Sprayed 9/12/19 
Kathy Okrepkie 512 Davinci Pass D-5 607-738-7506 Algae on pond Clayton Smith Sprayed 9/9/19 

Avatar pond, info 

Lydia Hill 225 Treviso Drive P-lF 864-640-9517 Alage, grass, midges N/A passed along 9/5/19 




